
Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

February 9, 2023 – 7:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Roll Call
B. Invocation – Retired Pastor Tom Lee, Lewisville United Methodist Church
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Jane Welch
D. Adoption of Agenda

2. Consent Agenda
A. Resolution 2023-006 – Financial statements for the six months ended December 31, 2022 –

(Attachment #1)

B. Approval of Called Meeting Minutes – December 29, 2022 (Attachment #2)

C. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – December 29, 2022
D. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – January 5, 2023(Attachment #3)

E. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – January 12, 2023 (Attachment #4)

F. Revised 2023 budget calendar (Attachment #5)

3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
A. Presentations

i. I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live
a. Tim Lasley (Attachment #6)

ii. Sheriff’s Office
B. Introductions

i. Public Works Director

4. Public Forum
A. Residents should register with the Town Clerk and limit their comments to three (3) minutes.
B. Written comments are also available.

5. Appointment(s)
A. Committees

i. Appointment Order 2023-001 – Christi Ritter – Lewisville Beautification Committee
(Attachment #7)

ii. Appointment Order 2023-002 – Matthew O’Connor– Public Safety Advisory Committee
(Attachment #8)

6. Public Hearing(s)
A. L-103 – Conditional district rezoning request - 7.45 acres off future extension of Great Wagon

Road (PIN 5875-87-6070) from RS-20 to RM-8-C by Luke Dickey; Stimmel Associates, PA
(Attachment #9)

i. Staff presentation
ii. Public hearing
iii. Council discussion
iv. Consideration of Ordinance 2023-005 (Attachment #10)



 

 

B. L-105 – Conditional district rezoning request - 1138 Lewisville-Clemmons Road from RS-9-C to 
RM-5-C by Ron Davis with Allegro Investment Properties, LLC  (Attachment #11) 
i. Staff presentation 
ii. Public hearing 
iii. Council discussion 
iv. Consideration of Ordinance 2023-006 (Attachment #12) 

 
7. Old Business – None  

 
8. New Business  

A. Ordinance 2023-007 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001-  Increase community policing  
contract for mid-year salary raises and possible inflationary overages in other items - $60,166 
(Attachment #13) 

B. Ordinance 2023-008 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001- Increase right-of-way 
maintenance in Powell Bill - $20,000 (Attachment #14) 

C. Resolution 2023-007– Awarding contract for asphalt patch on Tullyries Lane - $10,960 – 
(Attachment #15) 

D. Resolution 2023-008– Awarding contract for sidewalk repairs - $13,620– (Attachment #16) 
E. Ordinance 2023-009 – Amending Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustments charter 

(Attachment #17) 
F. Resolution 2023-0009 – Scheduling public hearing for Willow Run Municipal Service District 

charter amendment (Attachment #18) 
G. Consideration of facility fee exemptions 

i. Resolution 2023-010 - Winston-Salem Forsyth County Schools   (Attachment #19) 
ii. Resolution 2023-011 - West Forsyth Christian Preschool (Attachment #20) 
iii. Resolution 2023-012 - Indo US Cultural Association (Attachment #21) 
 

9. Administrative Reports 
A. Clerk’s Report  

i. Town & State Dinner – February 22, 5 PM – Raleigh Convention Center 
ii. CityVision – April 25-27 – Concord  

a. Let Town Clerk know no later than February 23 if plan to attend 
 

10. For the Good of the Order 
A. Public Comments 

i. Residents should limit their comments to three (3) minutes. 
ii. Written comment forms are also available.  

B. Council Comments 
 

11. Adjournment 
 



DRAFT

Attachment #1



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Lewisville Town Council 
Special Meeting Minutes 

December 29, 2022 – 6:30 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Conference Room - 6510 Shallowford Road 

Mayor Horn opened the special called meeting on December 29, 2022 at 6:30 PM.  In attendance were 
Mayor Mike Horn (remote), Mayor Pro Tem Jeanne Marie Foster, and Council Members Fred Franklin, 
Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler, and Jane Welch.  Also in attendance were Town Manager James Ayers, Assistant 
Town Manager/Planner Stacy Tolbert, Town Clerk Dora Moore, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Town 
Attorney Bowen Houff, Attorney Elliot Fus, and Attorney Andy Santaniello.  Council Member David 
Smitherman was absent. 

Council Member Hunt moved to enter into closed session related to the attorney-client privilege pursuant 
to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) at 6:30 PM.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Welch and approved 
unanimously.  

Council returned to open session at 7:25 PM. 

Ordinance 2022-067 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 – Mediation settlement - $1,975,000 - 
Council Member Sadler moved to approve Ordinance 2022-067.  The motion was seconded by Council 
Member Hunt and approved unanimously.  (Ordinance 2022-067 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 

Resolution 2022-073 – Mediated settlement agreement between Town of Lewisville and Solomon 
development, LLC - Council Member Sadler moved to approve Resolution 2022-073.  The motion was 
seconded by Council Member Hunt.  

Council Member Welch shared the following statement – “After voting for denial twice, it is very upsetting 
to vote in favor of a monetary settlement. The alternative could mean years of possible attorney fee costs, 
and even more money from the town.  I have been incensed; with the hours of discussion this council has 
devoted to this issue; and in the emotional drain taken. INCENSED!!!” 

Council Member Franklin echoed Council Member Welch’s comments stating he feels he made the right 
vote at the time. He further stated this has been the worst thing in his twenty-two years of service and 
feels it was the best decision for the Town and residents.  He thanked the mediation team for their efforts. 

Mayor Pro Tem Foster noted the unprecedented challenges the Town faced during the pandemic while 
operating under an extended state of emergency; therefore, she believes her duty to the Town residents 
requires a vote in the affirmative. By not voting for the agreement, Mayor Pro Tem Foster expressed 
concern that existing and future board and committee members may be less inclined to volunteer due to 
perceived risk.   

Mayor Horn stated this is the one vote in his twenty-two years that he will remember as being 
unfortunate.  He also wants boards and committees to make their decisions based on what they feel is 
best for the Town and the Town stand behind them.  

Council Member Franklin called the vote to question. 

Attachment #2



 

        

The Council voted unanimously to approve Resolution 2022-073.  (Resolution 2022-073 is herein incorporated by 

reference into the minutes.) 
 
Mayor Horn thanked staff for their perseverance and their caliber of professionalism.  
 
Having no further business to discuss, Council Member Sadler made a motion to adjourn at 7:37 PM. The 
motion was seconded by Council Member Franklin and approved unanimously. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Lewisville Town Council 
Briefing and Action Meeting Minutes 

January 5, 2023 – 6:30 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:30 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn (remote),

Mayor Pro Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, and Jane
Welch.  Also attending were Town Manager James Ayers, Assistant Town Manager/Planning
Director Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Town Clerk Dora Moore, Facilities Manager
Brian Moore, and Attorney Elliot Fus.  Council Member David Smitherman was absent.

B. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Franklin moved to approve the agenda. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.

C. Council Member Ken Sadler joined the meeting remotely at 6:33 PM.

2. Introductions, Recognitions and Presentations for January 5, 2023 – None

3. Items Requiring Council Direction
A. North Carolina League of Municipalities (NCLM) voting delegate for biennium legislative goals –

Council Member Welch nominated Mayor Horn to serve as the voting delegate for the biennium
legislative goals.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and passed unanimously.

B. Nomination – I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live – Council Member Welch
shared her nomination request for Maureen Barton to receive the I’m One of the Reasons
Lewisville is a Great Place to Live award.  Council Member Welch stated that Mrs. Barton has
coordinated the annual Christmas parade for 23 years and is a long-time member of the
Lewisville Civic Club.  Council consensus was to give this award to Mrs. Barton at the January 12
meeting. (Nomination form is herein incorporated into the minutes.)

4. Items Requiring Action at Briefing
A. Ordinance 2023-003 – Amending 2022-001 Budget Ordinance – Replenish Parks & Recreation

Department Contingency Fund - $10,000 – Mr. Ayers emailed the Council on December 16
reporting the need to hire sheriff’s deputies for an event hosted by Tim Sutton Ministries at the
Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC) due to projected participants well above the
initially projected 150.  Contingency funds were used to hire the deputies. To avoid this situation
in the future, the event rental process will be updated requiring event organizers to pay for
deputies and giving the Town enforcement options should attendance projections differ from
event application.  Staff is requesting the Council to approve replenishing the contingency fund
with $10,000.  Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to approve Ordinance 2023-003. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Welch and passed unanimously.  (Ordinance 2023-003 is herein

incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

B. Ordinance 2023-004 – Amending 2022-001 Budget Ordinance – Increase MAWCC maintenance
and repairs - $25,000 – Contingency funds were also used to due to emergency repairs from a
sewer back-up at MAWCC.  Mr. Ayers notified Council on December 29 of the issue.  The plumber
had to excavate through the hall floor outside the family restrooms to access a defective section
of pipe, which caused the issue. Plumbing repairs have been completed and tile replacement is
hoped to be done soon.  Staff is requesting $25,000 to increase the MAWCC repair and
maintenance line item.  Mr. Ayers has also submitted formal notice to the contractor regarding

Attachment #3



 

       

the construction defect. Council Member Franklin moved to approve Ordinance 2023-004. The 
motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and passed unanimously.  (Ordinance 2023-004 is 

herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 
  

5. Old Business – None  
 
6. Administrative Reports 

A. Manager 
i.  Council Retreat – January 27-28 – The 2023 Council retreat will be at MAWCC.  Dinner will be 

served at 5:30 PM on January 27 with session being 6:00-9:00 PM.  On January 28th, the 
morning will begin with breakfast at 8:30 AM and the session will be 9:00 AM-2:00 PM with a 
working lunch.  Topics will focus on projects, programs and people.   

ii. Public Works Director position – Mr. Ayers reported an offer was extended in December to a 
Public Works Director candidate and the Town is awaiting background check, etc.   He also 
reported that Public Works employee Bryan Grimsley has resigned as Maintenance Technician 
and a job posting will be forthcoming for that position. 

B. Attorney  
C. Public Works  
D. Planning  
E. Finance  
F. Clerk  

i. Town & State Dinner - February 22, 5 PM, Raleigh Convention Center – Let Mrs. Moore know 
by February 1 if you would like to attend. 

ii. CityVision – April 25-27 – Concord  
G. Community Center Facilities & Programming Manager – Mr. Moore announced the Shallowford 

Foundation extended their program grant for the Mary Alice Warren Community Center and he 
is currently working with them on upcoming programs.  A new yoga class begins this week, a new 
shag instructor begins in February, and rental inquiries for upcoming months are being received. 
He also reported a lot of large events were held in December.  Council Member Hunt shared that 
she has spoken with Sergeant Stringer about a potential safety class and she feels quarterly meet 
and greet events with the officers or Sheriff would be beneficial to the community.  Council 
Member Franklin inquired about a blood drive being held at MAWCC due to some of the other 
area host facilities being too small.      

 
7. Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on January 12, 2023 

A. Tentative Agenda 
i. Consent Agenda 

a. Resolution 2023-001– Financial statements for the five months ended November 30, 2022 
b. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – December 1, 2022  
c. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – December 8, 2022  
d. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – December 8, 2022 

ii. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations 
a. Presentations 

1. Sheriff’s office 
ii. Appointment(s) 

 
 

iii. Public Hearings  



 

       

a. L-104 – Site plan amendment and amendment of uses - 771 Williams Rd from HB-C to 
HB-C requested by Stephen Long c/o Williams Rd HQ, LLC  
1. Staff presentation 
2. Public hearing 
3. Council discussion 
4. Consideration of Ordinance 2023-002 

A. Mrs. Tolbert reported that last year Council approved rezoning and site plan for 
Advance Appliance, who decided not to construct on the site.  The property has 
been sold and the new owners are requesting site plan and use amendments, 
no zoning change.  At their November 9 meeting, the Planning Board 
unanimously recommended approval to Council. Although the property is not in 
the downtown overlay, elevation plans have been provided and they are using a 
lot of the downtown overlay material even though it is not required.  The ground 
level could possibly house a deli, wine tasting, and office spaces.  The second 
floor will have realty offices and weekend and evening realtor school sessions 
will be offered; hence the school designation request. As required, everyone 
within 500 feet of the property boundary were notified of both public hearings. 
A sign has been posted and newspaper ads ran.  Only a few people attended the 
Planning Board public hearing where they expressed some concern with traffic 
mitigation but feel the proposal is a betterment and had no negative feedback. 
Council Member Franklin expressed concern about sewage. Mrs. Tolbert noted 
the property has perked in three different locations and the property owner will 
work with Forsyth County.   

iv. Technical Review(s) 
v. Preliminary Site Plan Approvals 

vi. Evidentiary Hearings 
vii. Old Business 

viii. New Business 
a. Resolution 2023-002 - Qualifications-Based Selection exemption  

1. Projects under $50,000 can be exempted from the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
process for architectural, engineering and related services.  This would make it 
easier to procure professional services such as an architect for the Town Hall Annex 
assessment or a surveyor for property being acquired.   

b. Moser property – Lewisville-Vienna Road  
1. An attempt to donate .046-acre tract on Lewisville-Vienna Road previously owned 

by Dianne Jones Moser to the Town was reported by Mr. Ayers.  Although the Town 
is grateful when property owners consider donating their property to the Town, the 
Town must determine if acquisition is beneficial to the Town.  Due to the very small 
size of this lot and it is not adjacent to existing Town-owned property, Mr. Ayers 
recommended the donation be declined.  

c. Resolution 2023-003 – L-103 – To set a public hearing on February 9, 2023 for conditional 
district rezoning request of 7.45 acres off future extension of Great Wagon Road (PIN 
5875-87-6070) from RS-20 to RM-8-C by Luke Dickey; Stimmel Associates, PA  
1. Mrs. Tolbert reported forty-four townhomes are proposed.  Current access is off 

Belnette Drive; however, once the Great Wagon Road is completed, access will be off 
the Great Wagon Road.   

2. Council Member Hunt feels the townhomes will be an asset to the community.  



 

       

3. Council Member Franklin stated the Council at the time of construction will need to 
seriously consider usage of the Fred Moser property.  

d. Resolution 2023-004– L-105 – To set a public hearing on February 9, 2023 for conditional 
district rezoning request for 1138 Lewisville-Clemmons Road from RS-9-C to RM-5-C by 
Ron Davis with Allegro Investment Properties, LLC   
1. Mrs. Tolbert reported this property backs up to Kaplan and twin homes are proposed.   
2. Previously, a site plan amendment was done when the developer was considering 

single-family homes. An emergency exit is still required.  
 

iii. For the Good of the Order 
a. Council Member Sadler requested recusal from the January 12 meeting due to vacation.   
b. Mayor Pro Tem Foster also requested recusal from the January 12 meeting due to vacation.   
c. Mayor Horn shared that the Shallow Ford Foundation gave the Town $500 that can be used for 

anything at MAWCC.  He also reported that they extended the program grant in the amount of 
$15,000 for 2023.  The 2022 grant was $25,000. 

 
iv. Adjournment – Council Member Franklin moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:33 PM.  The motion was 

seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.  
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

January 12, 2023 – 7:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 7:00 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn and Council

Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, David Smitherman, and Jane Welch.  Also attending were
Town Manager James Ayers, Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Stacy Tolbert, Finance
Director Pam Orrell, Town Clerk Dora Moore and Town Attorney Elliot Fus.  Mayor Pro Tem Jeanne
Marie Foster and Council Member Ken Sadler were absent.

B. Invocation – Retired Pastor Tom Lee, Lewisville United Methodist church
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member David Smitherman
D. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Franklin moved to approve the agenda as presented. The

motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.

2. Consent Agenda
A. Consent agenda items

i. Resolution 2023-001– Financial statements for the five months ended November 30, 2022
ii. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – December 1, 2022

iii. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – December 8, 2022
iv. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – December 8, 2022

B. Council Member Welch moved to remove approval of the December 1, 2022 minutes from the
consent agenda and to approve the remaining consent agenda items.  The motion was seconded
by Council Member David Smitherman and approved unanimously.

C. Council Member Hunt moved to approve the amended December 1, 2022 minutes to reflect
Council Member Welch’s proposed correction:

For the Good of the Order 
A. Council Member Welch inquired about the uniformity of the Christmas lights along

Shallowford Road in terms of and when they were last replaced.
The motion was seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously.  
(Resolution 22023-001 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 

3. Presentations, Introductions and/or Proclamations
A. Presentations

i. Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office – Sergeant Stringer shared current call statistics noting that in
December the Town’s officers answered 67% of the calls.  This is reflective of the new officer
funded by the Town.  Sergeant Stringer thanked all who attended the Sheriff’s event at the
Lewisville Library the past evening. Sergeant Stringer also cautioned people not to drive
through standing water and warned them of gift card and jury duty scams.  Council Member
Franklin inquired if porch pirates were an issue during the Christmas season.  Sergeant Stringer
answered there were not a lot because doorbell cameras help deter the activity.  There were
some calls but no increase in calls.

Attachment #4



 

 

 
 

ii. I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live – Mayor Horn and Council Member 
Welch presented the I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live award to 
Maureen Barton.  Council Member Welch nominated Mrs. Barton stating:  ‘Maureen has lived 
in Lewisville over 35 years.  She is a long-time member of the Lewisville Civic Club and has been 
in charge of the Town’s Christmas parade for 23 years.  What a gift to our Town and 
surrounding communities!’ Mrs. Barton was humbled by the recognition and thanked current 
and past Town Councils for their support with the parade and understanding the changes made 
over the years.  She also thanked volunteers from the Civic Club and Lewisville Arts Council for 
their service as well as her family who were volunteered by her to help with the parade.  (A 

copy of Mrs. Barton’s certificate and the nomination form are herein incorporated into the minutes.) 
   

4. Public Forum  
A. Susan Frey, 165 Will Austin Court, shared concern that the new zoning hearing notification signs 

are not as noticeable due to the muted colors and short height. She requested the Town 
reconsider using the old signs or at least a taller, bolder sign. 

 
5. Appointment(s) – None  

 
6. Public Hearing(s)  

A. L-104 – Site plan amendment and amendment of uses - 771 Williams Rd from HB-C to HB-C 
requested by Stephen Long c/o Williams Rd HQ, LLC  
i. Staff presentation 

a. Mrs. Tolbert reported that 771 Williams Road backs up to the US 421 off-ramp and is 
outside the downtown overlay area.  The property was rezoned by Council in 2021 upon 
request by then property owners Advance Appliance.  The new owners are requesting use 
and site plan amendments, no rezoning.  Although not required, elevations were offered 
for the 2-story building.   The Planning Board recommended approval to council at their 
November 9 meeting.  (Staff presentation is herein incorporated into the minutes.) 

ii. Public hearing 
a. Opponents 

1.  Nancy Steffan, 305 Westeba RoadLane, expressed concern about the beautiful trees 
being cut down.  She also feels the traffic noise will increase with the new business.  

2.   Russell Courchine, 310 Westeba RoadLane, also expressed concern regarding traffic 
noise increasing due to the new business. 

3.   Aaron Hutmacher, 315 Doub Road, inquired if sidewalks should be installed due to 
proximity to the gateway project.  He also inquired about lighting and how security will 



 

 

be controlled in the parking lot.   He further inquired about a greenway connecting 
Williams Road to the Town and parks. 

b. Proponents 
1.   Rodney Bentley, 8008 Riverview Drive, Clemmons, is with Salem Contracting and the 

applicant.  Mr. Bentley stated they are open to installing sidewalks along the property 
line if desired by the Town. He explained that Keller Williams Elite will have their 
offices on the upper floor and will offer real estate classes twice a week that are 
typically held during weekdays; however, evening and weekend classes cannot be 
ruled out.  General retail business will be located on the lower level.  The parking lot 
size is designed to accommodate the school as well potentially 3 retail businesses and 
it will be lit. 

2. The first floor exterior will have a combination of stone and board and batten or hardy 
synthetic siding will be on the second floor.  Metal roofs will be over the porches and 
architectural shingles will be on the main roof.  The rear elevation will have glass, 
rollup doors to accommodate outdoor seating for a restaurant.  

iii. Council discussion 
a. Council Member Franklin stated the site plan appears to allow for sidewalks but he doesn’t 

feel they should be insisted at this time.   Mrs. Tolbert also feels there is plenty of right-of-
way for sidewalks. 

b. Council Member Welch inquired about the trees.  Mrs. Tolbert reported there will be a 
buffer all around the property due to a required visual buffer for abutting residential 
property.  Only trees needing to be removed will be removed. 

c. Council Member Smitherman inquired if septic will be an issue for serving food.  Mrs. 
Tolbert stated that would be handled by Forsyth County Environmental Health. 

d. Council Member Hunt asked if the Gateway project stopped at the roundabout and Mrs. 
Tolbert confirmed that it does. 

iv. Consideration of Ordinance 2023-002 – Council Member Hunt moved to approve Ordinance 
2023-002.  The motion as seconded by Council Member Fred Franklin and passed unanimously.  
(Ordinance 2023-002 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 
 

7. Technical Review(s) for Compliance – None 
 

8. Preliminary Site Plan Approval(s) – None  
 

9. Evidentiary Hearing(s) – None  
 

10. Annexation Request(s) – None  
 

11. Old Business – None  
 

12. New Business 
A. Resolution 2023-002 - Qualifications-Based Selection exemption – Projects under $50,000 can be 

exempted from the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process for architectural, engineering and 
related services.  This would make it easier to procure professional services such as an architect 
for the Town Hall Annex assessment or a surveyor for property being acquired.  Council Member 
Welch moved to approve Resolution 2023-002.  The motion was seconded by Council Member 
Hunt and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2023-002 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 



 

 

B. Moser property donation – Lewisville-Vienna Road – An attempt to donate .046-acre tract on 
Lewisville-Vienna Road previously owned by Dianne Jones Moser to the Town was reported by 
Mr. Ayers.  Although the Town is grateful when property owners consider donating their property 
to the Town, the Town must determine if acquisition is beneficial to the Town.  Due to the very 
small size of this lot and it is not adjacent to existing Town-owned property, Mr. Ayers 
recommended the donation be declined.  Council Member Hunt moved to decline acceptance of 
the property donation.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Franklin and motion passed 
unanimously.    Mayor Horn stated the Town is extremely fortunate and grateful that the Moser 
family has been very generous with land donations to the Town over the years.  Unfortunately, 
this particular piece of property does not have a useful purpose for the Town and would only be 
a liability.  

C. Resolution 2023-003 – L-103 – To set a public hearing on February 9, 2023 for conditional district 
rezoning request of 7.45 acres off future extension of Great Wagon Road (PIN 5875-87-6070) from 
RS-20 to RM-8-C by Luke Dickey; Stimmel Associates, PA - Council Member Franklin moved to 
approve Resolution 2023-003.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Smitherman and 
approved unanimously.  (Resolution 2023-003 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 

D. Resolution 2023-004– L-105 – To set a public hearing on February 9, 2023 for conditional district 
rezoning request for 1138 Lewisville-Clemmons Road from RS-9-C to RM-5-C by Ron Davis with 
Allegro Investment Properties, LLC - Council Member Smitherman moved to approve Resolution 
2023-004.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously.  
(Resolution 2023-004 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 

E. Resolution 2023-005– Authorizing Town Manager to sign finalized settlement agreement 
between Town of Lewisville and Solomon Development, LLC – Mayor Horn read the following 
statement:  

 
Many of our residents are aware of the apartment building on Shallowford Square that was 
proposed by Solomon Development in 2020 
  
Following an extensive process by our planning board to review this project including public 
hearings in which many of you attended, the council did not approve the proposed project.  
  
Last year, Solomon Development notified the town of its intention to sue the town for $8 
million in compensatory and punitive damages and attorney fees for not approving the 
apartment project. 
  
Additionally, Solomon notified the council of its intention to sue the individual council 
members who voted not to approve the project as well as certain Planning Board members. 
  
The town and Solomon engaged in several months of negotiations in an effort to avoid going 
to court. Our goal was to settle Solomon Development’s claims against both the town and 
the individual council and planning board members. 
  
We were unable to reach an agreement with Solomon Development, so as a next step, the 
town requested a third-party mediation in an attempt to resolve the matter. Participating for 
the town in the mediation were Mayor Mike Horn and Council Members Ken Sadler and 
Melissa Hunt. Participating for Solomon Development were Jeff Zenger and Julie Zenger. All 
parties had retained legal counsel who also participated in the negotiations and the 
mediation. 



 

 

  
The mediation occurred in December of last year resulting in an agreement that the town will 
pay Solomon Development approximately $2 million dollars which includes acquiring the 
property that was the subject of the dispute. 
  
After many hours of discussion among council members, and at the advice of our attorneys, 
the council reluctantly agreed to this settlement to avoid a jury trial of in which a favorable 
verdict for the town was uncertain and which could also have resulted in compensatory and 
punitive damages significantly greater than the settlement that was reached.   
  
Neither the town or any town official has agreed that any mistakes were made in the 
decision to not approve the project.  However, by agreeing to the settlement the council 
believes it is fiscally responsible in order to avoid the cost of several years of litigation and 
the potential for greater liability from a jury decision.  It will also be beneficial to own the 
property near Shallowford Square that is being acquired as part of the settlement.  
  
I am confident that I speak for those council members, who voted not to approve the 
proposed apartment building project at its proposed location on the Square, that we acted in 
what we believe was in the best interest of the town and our residents.  
  
While not requiring an increase in our resident’s property taxes to pay this settlement, this 
settlement will have a significant impact on our general fund balance having both short and 
long-term implications for our town and residents. 

 
Mayor Horn moved to approve Resolution 2023-005.  The motion was seconded by Council 
Member Hunt and approved unanimously.  (Resolution 2023-005 is herein incorporated by reference into 

the minutes.) 
 

13. Administrative Reports 
A. Upcoming Town events and holidays – Manager Ayers announced Town offices will be closed 

January 16 for Martin Luther King Jr. Day.  
B. Manager’s Report – None 
C. Planner’s Report – None  
D. Attorney’s Report – None 
E. Clerk’s Report  

i. Council retreat – January 27-28 
ii. Town & State Dinner – February 22, 5 PM – Raleigh Convention Center 

a. Let Town Clerk know by February 1 if plan to attend. 
iii. CityVision – April 25-27 – Concord  

F. Community Center Facilities & Programming Manager’s Report – None 
G. Approvals at Special Called Meeting on December 29, 2022  

i. Ordinance 2022-067– Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 – Mediated settlement 
agreement - $1,975,000  

ii. Resolution 2022-073 – Mediated settlement agreement between Town of Lewisville and 
Solomon Development, LLC - $1,975,000 

H. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on January 5, 2023  
i. Ordinance 2023-003 – Amending 2022-001 Budget Ordinance – Replenish Parks & Recreation 

Department Contingency Fund - $10,000  



 

 

ii. Ordinance 2023-004 – Amending 2022-001 Budget Ordinance – Increase MAWCC 
maintenance and repairs - $25,000 

 
14. For the Good of the Order 

A. Public comments  
i. Susan Frey, 165 Will Austin Court, thanked the Council for what they do for the Town stating 

it does not go unnoticed and is appreciated.  
B. Council comments 

i. Council Member Franklin stated his agreement with Mrs. Frey related to the zoning hearing 
signs and noted they are inadequate. 

 
15. Adjournment – Council Member Hunt moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:01 PM. The motion was 

seconded by Council Member Franklin and approved unanimously. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Date Time Notes

Draft budget presented to Council at Council meeting April 13, 2023 7:00 PM

Budget workshop April 17, 2023 6:00 PM

Budget workshop May 1, 2023 6:00 PM

Budget workshop (part of briefing) May 4, 2023 6:30 PM

Budget workshop May 8, 2023 6:00 PM

Budget ordinance final review at briefing June 1, 2023 6:30 PM

Budget public hearing at regular Council meeting June 8, 2023 7:00 PM

Date Time Notes

Draft budget presented to Council at Council meeting April 13, 2023 7:00 PM

Budget workshop April 17 20, 2023 6:00 PM Give more time for Council review

Budget workshop May 1, 2023 6:00 PM

Budget workshop (part of briefing) May 4, 2023 6:30 PM If needed

Budget workshop May 8, 2023 6:00 PM Delete because it's between 5/4 & 5/11 meetings

Budget public hearing at regular Council meeting May 11, 2023 7:00 PM Give more time for public input & Council/staff response

Budget ordinance final review at briefing June 1, 2023 6:30 PM

Budget approval at regular Council meeting June 8, 2023 7:00 PM

2023 BUDGET CALENDAR

2023 BUDGET CALENDAR - PROPOSED REVISIONS

CURRENT CALENDAR

PROPOSED CALENDAR

Attachment #5



Attachment #6





TOWN OF LEWISVILLE  
2023-001 APPOINTMENT ORDER 

LEWISVILLE BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, the Town Council established the Lewisville Beautification Committee in October 1991; and 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Beautification Committee is a planning agency in the planning organization 
charter; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that the Lewisville Beautification Committee serves a vital 
community function. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL appoints the following to 
serve on the Lewisville Beautification Committee through March 31, 2024: 

Christi Ritter  Member 

Appointed this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk DRAFT

Attachment #7



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE  
2023-002 APPOINTMENT ORDER 

PUBLIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, the Town Council established the Lewisville Public Safety Advisory Committee in November 
1996; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that the Public Safety Advisory Committee serves a vital 
community function. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL appoints the following to 
serve on the Public Safety Advisory Committee through March 31, 2024: 

Matthew O’Connor  Member 

Appointed this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

DRAFT

Attachment #8



CONDITIONAL DISTRICT REZONING STAFF REPORT 

Arden Townhomes 

DOCKET: L-103

STAFF: Adam Barr, Planner

Petitioner:  Luke Dickey; Stimmel Associates, PA

Ownership:  James, Russel, Keith, & Joseph Wilson

REQUEST OF REZONING: 

From: RS-20 (Residential Single Family, minimum lot size of 20,000 sq. ft.) 

To: RM-8-C (Residential Multi Family, maximum 8 units per acre) 

PIN#(s): 5875-87-6070  

Acreage: 

LOCATION: 

7.45 acres 

Street: Off the future extension of Great Wagon Road, west of David McKee St, and east of 

Shallowford Rd.  

Jurisdiction: Town of Lewisville 

PROPERTY SITE/IMMEDIATE AREA: 

Existing Structures on Site: The site is currently vacant. 

Adjacent uses: 

* North - Single family residences, zoned RS-20

* East - Single family residences, zoned RS-20.

* South – Hayworth Miller, Textures Salon, Shallowford Animal Hospital, zoned LD1-S; Lewisville

Drug, zoned LD1-S

* West – The Oaks at Lewisville shopping center, zoned HB

GENERAL AREA: 

Character/Maintenance: This area is located in the Downtown Overlay District which includes 

residential, commercial, and recreational uses.  

PHYSICAL FEATURES: 

Topography: The site slopes gently from the southeast to the northwest. 

Vegetation/habitat: The majority of the property is wooded. 

Impact on Existing Features: Impacts are to be expected. The wooded areas are likely to be removed. 

WATER AND SEWER FACILITIES: 

Public water and sewer are proposed with the construction of the Great Wagon Road. Site will have 

direct access once constructed.   

TRANSPORTATION: 

Direct Access to Site:        Great Wagon Rd 

Street Classification(s):  Likely to be a Minor Thoroughfare 

Attachment #9



Average Daily Traffic Count/Estimated: Not available.  

HISTORY/RELEVANT ZONING CASES: 

* L-99001; RS-20 to RS-9-S Planned Residential Development Crafton Creek (Single-Family 

Residential Housing); 50 homes; west side of Lewisville-Clemmons Road; 13.34 acres.  

* L-029; RS-9 to RM-5-S & RM-12-S Shallowford Reserve Development for multiple residential 

uses approved 08/14/2003; south side of Shallowford Rd and near Summerglen Drive; 27.2 

acres. 

CONFORMITY TO PLANS: 

Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan – The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map identifies 

the subject property as belonging to the Downtown preferred place type. The Downtown area consists 

of unique commercial ventures with thoughtful respect to the historic, small town character of 

Lewisville. This area is intended to combine small town urban characteristics by blending civic uses, 

retail and entertainment attractions, employment opportunities, open space, and mixed-use residential 

areas in intentional ways. 

 

UDO – With the site being inside the boundary of the Downtown Overlay District, submitted with the 

application is also elevations. These elevations show compliance with the standards of the UDO, 

including the use of the appropriate roofing and siding, and the inclusion of a buffer yard for their 

perimeter. While not being consider large scale building, the structures still comply with the building 

height variance standards. The plans are not showing utilization of on street parking for credits.  

 

Legacy Development Guide - Legacy recommends increasing residential densities along growth corridors 

and in activity centers where serviceable land is located.  This property is located in the Growth 

Management Area (GMA) 1 a City/Town Center, which is intended to promote a dense, mixed-use and 

pedestrian-oriented urban form and is the hub for government and private employment.   

ANALYSIS: 

The applicant is requesting a change from RS-20 zoning to RM-8-C; as a conditional request, a 

preliminary subdivision has been submitted for review by staff and the Board. The preliminary 

subdivision includes a development with 44 units distributed across 10 structures, showing access off 

Great Wagon Road.   

 

RM-8 is primarily intended to accommodate low density, pedestrian-oriented sites and communities 

containing duplexes, twin homes, multifamily, and townhouse residential buildings with three or four 

units, and similar residential uses at a maximum overall density of 8 units per acre. This RM-8 district is 

appropriate for GMAs 2 and 3 and may be suitable for GMA 4 and Metro Activity Centers where public 

water and sewer area available. RS-20 is generally considered to accommodate single family detached 

dwellings in suburban areas. This district is typically used for single-family development where public 

water is available. This RS-9 district is appropriate in GMAs 2 and 3.   

 

Legacy designates the area within which the project lies as GMA-1 "City/Town Center."  This 

acknowledges opportunities made available by having access to public water/sewer and proximity to 

existing thoroughfares such as Shallowford Rd and the Great Wagon Rd. The proposed RM-8-C zoning 



would support the uses in the nearby town center. It would complement the existing commercial uses in 

the area because of the higher density than surrounding residential uses. 

The town’s 2022 Comprehensive Plan designates this area as “Downtown”. Part of the intent of this area 

is to support multifamily residential and mixed-use development at appropriate scales. This area also 

seeks to create a grid street network and provide multimodal options that connect to surrounding 

residential areas.  

Town staff is of the opinion that the request is consistent with the Town's Comprehensive Plan, Legacy, 

and the Downtown overlay standards for the area and complements the uses in the downtown. The 

developer has or will need to follow the major subdivision requirements in Chapter D Section 4, 

including but not limited to the requirements below:  

1. Erosion control permits shall be obtained through The City of Winston-Salem.  

2. Stormwater management permits, if required, must be obtained through the Town of Lewisville 

before issuing building or zoning permits.  

3. TRC Comments must be remedied. 

FINDINGS: 

1. The request is for conditional zoning; a preliminary draft site plan has been submitted 

and a specific use requested.  If the property is later subdivided, the Planning Board and 

the Town Council will be required to review and approve the subdivision plan. 

    

2. The requested zoning would allow residential development at densities higher than 

most nearby properties.  However, the requested density is supported by existing 

infrastructure and anticipated and encouraged by the Town's Comprehensive Plan. 

3. The proposed zoning district would not introduce a use(s) or density of development 

incompatible with the existing nearby residential development. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The site has available infrastructure to support the density of development that is being proposed. 

Statements found in both the Lewisville Comprehensive Plan and Forsyth County Legacy Plan encourages 

higher density within a suburban/urban environment along growth corridors or in activity centers. Given 

these findings and other supporting information found in this report, staff recommends the rezoning to 

the Planning Board.  



950

950

930920

940

930
930

930

94
0

940

940

940

950

950 960

SHALLOWFORD ROAD

SH
ALLO

W
FO

R
D

 R
O

AD

BR
O

O
KSID

E D
R

IVE

BELNETTE DRIVE

RS-20

LD2-S
LD1-S

RM-12

PB-S

LD1-S

8" SANITARY SEWER

12" WATER

6" W
ATER

12" WATER

12" WATER

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
WW

W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

30' BUILDING SETBACK

25' BUILDING
 SETBACK

25' BUILDING SETBACK
MIN. 15' TYPE II BUFFERYARD

S8
° 

35
' 4

0"
W

   
 2

32
.8

5'

S73° 07' 31"E    83.17' S73° 07' 33"E    17.83'
S73° 07' 33"E    83.14' S73° 07' 32"E    17.86'

S61° 12' 39"W    1
20.30'

S61° 12' 41"W    4
.69'

S61° 12' 39"W    5
7.26'

S76° 44' 49"W    585.93'

N79° 39' 14"W    98.38'

N31° 23' 03"W
    292.45'

N75° 27' 09"E    161.85'

N75° 27' 09"E    140.50'

N75° 27' 09"E    120.00'

N75° 27' 09"E    80.00'

N75° 23' 13"E    0.10'

S73° 21' 14"E    111.10'

S73° 21' 14"E    102.50'
S73° 21' 15"E    13.84'

S73° 21' 14"E    131.31'

N
8°

 3
2'

 2
7"

E 
   

22
2.

86
'

S81° 12' 07"E    59.99'

25' BUILDING SETBACK

94
6

936

934

93
2

944

94
6

948
944942940

940

94
4

946

944

944

94
4946

946

942

946

948

BELNETTE DRIVE

26'

50'

20'

20'

16'

16'

20'
16'

20'
16'

16'

20'

16'

20'

20'16'

5'

5'

5'

5'

92'

128'

60'

60'

92'

60
'

128'

76'

92'

60'

11
2'

60'

112'

4 UNIT BUILDING

2- STORY

6 UNIT BUILDING

2- STORY

4 UNIT BUILDING
2- STORY

6 UNIT BUILDING2- STORY

4 UNIT BUILDING2- STORY

3 UNITBUILDING2- STORY

60
'

60
'

5 
U

N
IT

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

2-
 S

TO
R

Y

5 U
N

IT B
U

ILD
IN

G

2- STO
R

Y

60'

92'

4 UNIT BUILDING

2- STORY

60'

76'

60'

3 U
N

IT

B
U

ILD
IN

G

2- STO
R

Y

8'

10'

2'

20'

1/2"/FT
1/4"/FT

LANE

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

8'

10'

2'

1/2"/FT
1/4"/FT

LANE

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

24" MOUNTABLE
CURB AND
GUTTER

4" MIN. ABC
UNDER CURB
TYP.

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

1.5" S9.5C SURFACE
2.5" I19.0D INTERMEDIATE

7.5" ABC (100% STD, PROCTOR)

5'
 U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

5'

5'
 U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

5'

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND
WATER LINE

LD, GH
22-083

RZ-1

CLIENT:

11/02/2022
DESCRIPTIONDATE

Justin Mendenhall
Arden Homes
P.O. Box 5323
Winston-Salem, NC 27113
P: (336)659-9503
E: justin@ardenhomes.com

© STIMMEL ASSOCIATES, P.A.

SHEET TITLE:

DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
SUBMITTAL DATE:

SEALS:

PROJECT NAME & LOCATION:

A
rd

en
 - 

Le
w

is
vi

lle
 T

ow
nh

om
es

Le
w

is
vi

lle
, N

C

SCALE: NOT TO SCALEVICINITY MAP

SITE

F:
\2

2-
08

3\
LP

\D
ra

w
in

gs
\Z

on
in

g\
22

-0
83

 R
Z-

1.
dw

g 
: 3

0x
42

 R
Z-

1 
 1

1/
02

/2
2 

10
:2

1a
m

NORTH

0

SCALE: 1" = 50'

50 100 150

PREPARED BY:

Rezoning
Submittal

PIN#:            5875-87-6070.000
Deed Bk-Pg: 2000E-0603
Zoning: RS20
Owner: Wilson, James O II; Wilson, Russell A; Wilson,

Keith M; Wilson, Joesph E
1801 Gurney Road
East Bend, NC 27018

Phone#: Joe Wilson | (336) 830-2825
Email: n/a

OWNERS/PETITIONERS:

Arden - Lewisville Townhomes

SITE DATA

ADJACENT OWNERS

NOTES

PROPOSED USES

q PRE-SUBMITTAL
q SUBMITTAL
q REVISED SUBMITTAL

PLANS FOR:

1

2

3

4 5 6 7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

17

22

21

20

19

18

16

APPROXIMATE EX. TREES TO REMAIN
(TYP.)

PROPOSED ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PER
NCDOT TIP PROJECT U-5536

APPROXIMATE STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT DEVICE LOCATION

(PROPOSED UNDERGROUND DEVICE)

COMMON RECREATION AREA
(MIN. OF 4,400 SF PROVIDED)

100' VEGETATIVE STREAM BUFFER
(PER TOWN OF LEWISVILLE
STREAM BUFFER REQUIREMENTS)

15' TYPE II BUFFERYARD
(ADJACENT TO RESIDENTIAL ZONING)

15' TYPE II BUFFERYARD
(ADJACENT TO RESIDENTIAL ZONING)

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL
(8-10' HEIGHT +/-)

2171

NORTH CAROLINA

L U K E A D I C K EY

REG
IS

TE
R

ED

LANDSCAPE
AR

C
H

ITECT

ST
IM

MEL ASSOCIATES

P A
,

.
.

NORT H CARO L IN A

C O R P O R A T E

C - 6 9

PRELIMINARY DRAWING

NOT APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

EX. WATER LINE

PROP. WATER LINE
(TYP.)

PROP. FIRE HYDRANT
(TYP.)

PROP. SIDEWALK PER
NCDOT TIP PROJECT U-5536

PROP. TRAFFIC CIRCLE PER
NCDOT TIP PROJECT U-5536

TYPE II BUFFERYARD PLANTINGS
280 LF +/-
  6-  LARGE DECIDUOUS TREES
23- PRIMARY EVERGREENS
56- SUPPLEMENTAL EVERGREEN SHRUBS

TYPE II BUFFERYARD PLANTINGS
460 LF +/-
  9- LARGE DECIDUOUS TREES
37- PRIMARY EVERGREENS
92- SUPPLEMENTAL EVERGREEN SHRUBS

15' TYPE II BUFFERYARD
(ADJACENT TO RESIDENTIAL ZONING)
EX. VEGETATION TO REMAIN IN
STREAM BUFFER. SUPPLEMENT
PLANTINGS AS REQUIRED.

PROPOSED SIGNAGE
(TYP.)

PROPOSED CONCRETE APRON

PROPOSED ALLEY
(16' ASPHALT PAVING WITH A 2' MOUNTABLE CURB)

5' UTILITY EASEMENT

TYPICAL ALLEY SECTION

PreSubmittal Date09/21/2022
Submittal Date11/02/2022



Great Wagon Road Project
Arden Homes

PRELIMINARY DESIGN – Street Elevation
Initial Elevations (4 Unit Building)

27’ 16’ 20’ 24’

LEWISVILLE TOWNHOMES

Roof Pitch
8:12

Max Building
Height 

(all elevations)
32’

Typical height 
to eave

24’

NOTES:
1. All elevations to be no higher 

than 32’ from finished grade 
to apex of roof. 

2. Roofing material will be 
Architectural Shingle or Metal

3. All sides will be brick with 
cement board accents

4. Roof pitch of primary roof to 
be a maximum of 8 feet of rise 
in 12 feet of run

5. Eave height may vary 
depending on grade, but eave 
will be no higher than 24 feet 
from finished sidewalk grade



Great Wagon Road Project
Arden Homes

PRELIMINARY DESIGN – Left Elevation

16’ 20’

LEWISVILLE TOWNHOMES

Roof Pitch
8:12

Max Building
Height 

(all elevations)
32’

Typical height 
to eave

24’

NOTES:
1. All elevations to be no higher 

than 32’ from finished grade 
to apex of roof. 

2. Roofing material will be 
Architectural Shingle or Metal

3. All sides will be brick with 
cement board accents

4. Roof pitch of primary roof to 
be a maximum of 8 feet of rise 
in 12 feet of run

5. Eave height may vary 
depending on grade, but eave 
will be no higher than 24 feet 
from finished sidewalk grade

PRELIMINARY DESIGN – Right Elevation

Roof Pitch
8:12



Great Wagon Road Project
Arden Homes

PRELIMINARY DESIGN – Rear/Alley Elevation
Initial Elevations (4 Unit Building)

27’ 16’ 20’ 24’

LEWISVILLE TOWNHOMES

Roof Pitch
8:12

Max Building
Height 

(all elevations)
32’

Typical height 
to eave

24’

NOTES:
1. All elevations to be no higher 

than 32’ from finished grade 
to apex of roof. 

2. Roofing material will be 
Architectural Shingle or Metal

3. All sides will be brick with 
cement board accents

4. Roof pitch of primary roof to 
be a maximum of 8 feet of rise 
in 12 feet of run

5. Eave height may vary 
depending on grade, but eave 
will be no higher than 24 feet 
from finished sidewalk grade



LEWISVILLE TOWNHOMES

Great Wagon Road Project
Arden Homes

PRELIMINARY DESIGN
Initial Floor Plans

Rear (Alley/Lane) Side

Front (Street) Side



RS20

IP

HB

RS9 RM8

PB
LB-S

RM12

LD1-S

RM8

LD1-SLD2-S

LD1-S
PB-S

PB-S

LD1-S

LB-S

IP-S
LD1-S

LD1-S
LD1-S

LD1-SLD1-S

PB-S

LB-S

LD1-S

RM12

PB

PB-S

NORTH

SHALLOWFORD

BELNETTE

LUCY

STYERS

BROOKSIDE

WILL
IAM

S

TROXAWAY

HE
RI

TA
GE

PE
PP

ER
ID

GE

MOCK GARDEN

SUNNY ACRES

AR
RO

W 
LE

AF

EA
GL

EW
OO

D

LEWISVILLE-CLEMMONS

WILL AUSTIN

MATT JAMES

MAY APPLE

This map and anaysis are provided "As Is" without warranty of any kind, either express or implied.  The information containted in this map is for 
informational purposes only and was not prepared for, and is not suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  Use of these materials 
constitutes acceptance of this disclaimer of liability.

Created by:  Stacy Tolbert

L-103 Arden Townhomes REZ

1 inch = 500 feet

Legend
CENTERLINES
Legal Lot Lines
Streams
Pond / Lake
Zoning
Forsyth County

Property of 
Request

Lewisville

¯

PIN #:  5875-87-6070

500 ft. Buffer



ORDINANCE 2023-005 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCES AND 

ZONING MAP OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE  

Conditional District Rezoning from RS-20 (Residential Single family, minimum lot size 20,000 sq. ft) to 
RM-8-C (Residential Multi-Family, maximum 8 units per acre) 

 (Zoning Docket L-103) 
Future extension of Great Wagon Road, west of David McKee Street and east of Shallowford Road 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville published notification of this conditional zoning request on January 22, 
2023 and January 29, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville has received an affidavit of publication for the aforementioned dates; 
and 

WHEREAS, sign posting of the property occurred on November 1, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, these procedures have been performed and certified by Town staff in accordance with North 
Carolina land use regulations found in NCGS 160D-601; and,  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council accepts the staff report; and 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board held a public hearing and rendered its recommendation 
of approval to Council at their December 14, 2022 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board has favorably recommended approval of the request to 
the Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, the uses requested are allowed under RM-8-C (Residential Multi-Family, maximum 8 

units per acre) zoning district; and 

WHEREAS, higher density residential is encouraged in this area by the Lewisville Tomorrow 
Comprehensive Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the Lewisville Town Council finds the proposed conditional 
district rezoning is consistent with and conforms to the goals and recommendations of the Lewisville 
Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan, Legacy Development Guide and Lewisville Greenway and Pedestrian 
Connections Plan.  Further, we find that the action to be taken is reasonable and in the public interest and 
therefore approve the zoning map amendment and site plan.  

Attachment #10



 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1: The Town of Lewisville Official Zoning Map of the Town of Lewisville, North Carolina are 

hereby amended. 
 
Section 2: The property is 7.45 acres, PIN 5875-87-6070, located off the future extension of Great 

Wagon Road, west of David McKee Street and east of Shallowford Road as shown on the 
attached site plan. 

 
Section 3: This ordinance shall be effective from and after its adoption. 
 
Adopted this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 
         __________________________ 
ATTEST:         Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



CONDITIONAL DISTRICT REZONING STAFF REPORT 

Longwood Village 

DOCKET: L-105

STAFF: Adam Barr, Planner

Petitioner:  Ron Davis with Allegro Investment Properties, LLC

Ownership:  Kaplan Partners

REQUEST OF REZONING: 

From: RS-9-C (Residential Single Family, minimum lot size of 9,000 sq. ft.) 

To: RM-5-C (Residential Multi Family, maximum 5 units per acre) 

PIN#(s): 5885-70-8928 (portion) & 5885-81-0388 

Acreage: 

LOCATION: 

13.57 acres 

Street: 1138 Lewisville-Clemmons Rd 

Jurisdiction: Town of Lewisville 

PROPERTY SITE/IMMEDIATE AREA: 

Existing Structures on Site: The site has two existing homes on the property as well as some accessory 

structures. 

Adjacent uses: 

* North - Single family residences, Fountain Brook Development, zoned RS-20

* East - Single family residence, 1175 Lewisville-Clemmons Rd, zoned RS-9; Family Medical Office,

zoned HB-S; both located across Lewisville-Clemmons Rd.

* South - Shallowford Presbyterian Church, zoned RS-9; Kaplan Partners, zoned HB-S

* West - Kaplan Partners, zoned HB-S

GENERAL AREA: 

Character/Maintenance: This area is somewhat of a transition zone between residential usage and 

commercial usage.  

PHYSICAL FEATURES: 

Topography: The site slopes gently from the east to the west away from Lewisville-Clemmons Rd. 

Vegetation/habitat: The majority of the property is wooded. 

Impact on Existing Features: Impacts are to be expected. The wooded areas are likely to be removed as 

well as the structures on the property due to the request develop 38 residential lots.  

WATER AND SEWER FACILITIES: 

Public water and sewer are available to the site. 

TRANSPORTATION: 

Direct Access to Site:  Lewisville-Clemmons Rd 

Street Classification(s): Lewisville-Clemmons Major Thoroughfare 

Attachment #11



Average Daily Traffic Count/Estimated: 11000 (source: NCDOT AADT 2017) 

HISTORY/RELEVANT ZONING CASES: 

* L-048; RS-20 Planned Residential Development Fountain Brook (Single-Family Residential 

Housing); approved 05/11/2006; west side of Lewisville-Clemmons Road north of and adjacent 

to Kaplan Partners; 13.38 acres; Planning Board and staff recommended approval. 

* L-078; RS-20 to RS-9-S (Single-Family Residential Housing) approved 04/13/2017; south side of 

Lewisville-Clemmons Rd and near Lalanda Drive; 10+/- acres; Planning Board and staff 

recommended approval. 

* L-095 HB-S & RS-20 to RS-9-S approved on June 15, 2020; the current proposed properties were 

approved for a single-family residential development with 38 lots; Planning Board and staff 

recommended approval.  

* L-099 A site plan amendment was approved on October 14, 2021 for the current proposed 

properties. Environmental constraints led to an adjustment to 34 lots and a change in street 

design; Planning Board and staff recommended approval.  

CONFORMITY TO PLANS: 

Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan – The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map identifies 

the subject property as a Neighborhood Center preferred place type. Neighborhood Center areas are 

smaller-scale mixed-use areas located near existing or planned neighborhoods.  

 

Lewisville Comprehensive Plan Update 2015 - The Plan describes this area as being an area where higher 

density uses are appropriate, particularly where sewer is available.  This area is shown as an activity 

center on Map 9 of the comprehensive plan. 

The Plan also contains a number of "Recommended Actions." In the chapter on Land Use, 

recommendations include; allowing higher density where appropriate, preserving the character of town, 

and promoting high density development in areas supported by infrastructure. 

Legacy Development Guide - Legacy recommends increasing residential densities along growth corridors 

and in activity centers where serviceable land is located.  This property is located in the Growth 

Management Area (GMA) 3 which gives opportunity for pedestrian-friendly designs and street 

standards requiring sidewalks.   

The Legacy 2030 Update also identifies this area around the intersection of Lewisville-Clemmons Road & 

Styers Ferry Road, at the US 421 interchange, as an activity center but also identifies the area as an area 

for suburban neighborhoods.   

ANALYSIS: 

The applicant is requesting a change from RS-9-C zoning to RM-5-C; as a conditional request, a 

preliminary subdivision has been submitted for review by staff and the Board. The preliminary 

subdivision includes a development with 60 units (29 twin homes and 2 single-family homes) with 

access off Lewisville-Clemmons Road.   



RM-5 is primarily intended to accommodate low density, pedestrian-oriented sites and communities 

containing duplexes, twin homes, multifamily, and townhouse residential buildings with three or four 

units, and similar residential uses at a maximum overall density of five units per acre. This RM-5 district 

is appropriate for GMAs 2 and 3 and may be suitable for GMA 4 and Metro Activity Centers where public 

water and sewer area available. RS-9 is generally considered to accommodate high density single family 

detached dwellings in urban areas. This district is typically used for single-family development where 

public sewer is available. This RS-9 district is appropriate in GMAs 2 and 3 and may be suitable for metro 

activity centers where public water and sewer are available.  

 

Legacy designates the area within which the project lies as GMA-3 "Suburban Neighborhood."  This 

acknowledges opportunities made available by having access to public water/sewer and proximity to 

existing thoroughfares such as Lewisville-Clemmons Road and US421. The proposed RM-5-S zoning 

would support the uses in the nearby activity center. The proposed rezoning, if approved, would allow a 

variety of residential use in and around the activity center at Lewisville Clemmons Rd/Styers Ferry Rd/US 

421.  Although the use may differ from some of the existing uses in the area, the proposed land use is 

appropriate for the area.  It would complement the existing commercial uses in the area because of the 

higher density than surrounding residential uses. 

The town’s 2022 Comprehensive Plan designates this area as “Neighborhood Center”. Part of the intent 

of this area is to incorporate different types of housing that can support the commercial area and 

reinforce nearby established neighborhoods. These areas can be surrounded by smaller lot, single-

family residential and townhomes that emphasize connectivity to and integration with its surrounding 

area.  

Town staff is of the opinion that the request is consistent with the Town's Comprehensive Plan and 

Legacy for the area and complements the uses in the activity center. The developer has or will need to 

follow the major subdivision requirements in Chapter D Section 4, including but not limited to the 

requirements below:  

1. Erosion control permits shall be obtained through The City of Winston-Salem.  

2. Stormwater management permits, if required, must be obtained through the Town of Lewisville 

before issuing building or zoning permits.  

3. TRC Comments must be remedied. 

FINDINGS: 

1. The request is for conditional zoning; a preliminary draft site plan has been submitted 

and a specific use requested.  If the property is later subdivided, the Planning Board and 

the Town Council will be required to review and approve the subdivision plan. 

    

2. The requested zoning would allow residential development at densities higher than 

most nearby properties.  However, the requested density is supported by existing 

infrastructure and anticipated and encouraged by the Town's Comprehensive Plan. 

3. The proposed zoning district would not introduce a use(s) or density of development 

incompatible with the existing nearby residential development. 



RECOMMENDATION: 

The site has available infrastructure to support the density of development that is being proposed. 

Statements found in both the Lewisville Comprehensive Plan and Forsyth County Legacy Plan encourages 

higher density within a suburban/urban environment along growth corridors or in activity centers. Given 

these findings and other supporting information found in this report, staff recommends the rezoning to 

the Planning Board.  



W

W

X

O

H

U

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

FM

FM

FM

F
M

FM F
M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

G

A

T

E

C

H

A

I

N

P
A

V
E

D
 D

R
IV

E

G

R

A

V

E

L

 
D

R

I
V

E

S

H

E

D

S

H

E

D

S

H

E

D

S

H

E

D

D

W

E

L

L

I

N

G

D

W

E

L

L

I

N

G

C

A

R

P

O

R

T

30' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AS PER PB 38, PG. 188

2

0

'
 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

A

S

 

P

E

R

 

P

B

 

3

8

,

 

P

G

.

 

1

8

8

W

O

V
E

N
W

IR
E

8

0

0

8

1

0

8
1
0

8

1

0

8

1

0

8
1
0

8

1

0

8

1

0

8

1

0

8
1
0

8
1
0

8

1

0

8

1

0

8

2

0

8

2

0

8

2

0

8
2
0

8
2
0

8

2

0

8

2

0

8

2

0

8
2
0

8
3
0

8

3

0

8

3

0

8

3

0

8
3
0

8
3
0

8

3

0

8
3
0

8
3
0

8

3

0

8

4

0

8
4
0

8
4
0

8
4
0

8
4
0

8

4

0

8

4

0

8

4

0

8

4

0

8

4

0

8

4

0

8

4

0

8

4

0

8
5
0

8

5

0

8
5
0

8

5

0

8
5
0

8

5

0

8

5

0

8

5

0

8
5
0

8

5

0

8

5

0

8
5
0

8
6
0

8

6

0

8

6

0

8

6

0

8

6

0

8

6

0

8

6

0

8

6

0

8
6
0

8

6

0

8

6

0

8

1

0

8

1

0

8

0

2

8

2

0

8

3

0

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

O

H

U

S

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

INV=

851.94'

INV=

855.31'

INV=

855.30'

INV=

857.66'

1

2

"

 

R

C

P

1

2

"

 

R

C

P

1

5

"

R

C

P

1

8

"

R

C

P

INV=

861.70'

INV=

861.42'

MH-S

RIM=818.31'

INV=808.38'

MH-S

RIM=817.50'

INV=800.88'

MH-S

RIM=810.17'

INV IN=800.47'

INV OUT=795.57'

MH-S

RIM=811.10'

INV=801.55'

MH-S

RIM=834.15'

INV=824.90'

8

"

 

D

I

P

8

"
 
D

I
P

3

0

'
 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
U

T

I
L

I
T

Y

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

 
A

S

 
P

E

R

P

B

 
3

8

,
 
P

G

.
 
1

8

8

2

0

'

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

A

S

 

P

E

R

 

P

B

 

3

8

,

 

P

G

.

 

1

8

8

N

E

W

 

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

A

S

 

P

E

R

 

P

B

 

3

8

,

 

P

G

.

 

1

8

8

2

0

'
 
P

E

R

M

A

N

E

N

T

 
S

A

N

I
T

A

R

Y

 
S

E

W

E

R

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

 
A

S

 
P

E

R

 
D

B

 
2

0

7

2

,
 
P

G

.
 
3

0

3

N70°00'36"E

661.82'

S

4

1

°

3

2

'
4

5

"

E

1

2

9

.

9

5

'

S

4

1

°

2

2

'
4

0

"

E

1

4

6

.

8

7

'

S

4

9

°

3

2

'
0

9

"

W

9

.

9

7

'

S

5

1

°

2

0

'
3

4

"

W

1

2

4

.

7

7

'

S72°24'08"W

330.90'

N

3

9

°

3

5

'
4

1

"

W

3

0

4

.

9

1

'

S

4

1

°

5

6

'
0

8

"

E

5

5

0

.

1

0

'

S69°10'37"W

455.03'

S
6
5
°
0
0
'1

1
"W

1
0
.4

4
'

S

0

0

°

2

0

'
1

7

"

E

1

8

2

.

9

1

'

E

X

 
2

0

'
 
S

A

N

 
S

E

W

E

R

 
E

S

M

T

P

H

Y

L

L

I

S

 

S

T

O

L

T

Z

 

D

A

L

T

O

N

P

I

N

:

 

5

8

8

5

-

8

1

-

9

3

2

6

B

L

O

C

K

:

 

4

4

3

3

 

L

O

T

 

0

5

B

Z

O

N

I

N

G

:

 

R

S

9

F

A

M

I

L

Y

 

M

E

D

I

C

A

L

 

A

S

S

O

C

.

O

F

 

L

E

W

I

S

V

I

L

L

E

P

I

N

:

 

5

8

8

5

-

8

0

-

9

9

4

7

B

L

O

C

K

:

 

4

4

3

3

 

L

O

T

 

0

6

A

Z

O

N

I

N

G

:

 

H

B

-

S

SHALLOWFORD

 PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

PIN: 5885-80-6714

BLOCK: 4433 LOT 05C

ZONING: RS9

KAPLAN PARTNERS

PIN: 5885-70-8928

BLOCK: 4433 LOT 05D

ZONING: HB-S

KAPLAN PARTNERS

PIN: 5885-70-8928

BLOCK: 4433 LOT 05D

ZONING: HB-S

5
0
.
0
0
'

R
/
W

2

7

.

0

0

'

B

-

B

2

7

.

0

0

'

B

-

B

5

0

.

0

0

'

R

/

W

4

8

'
R

5

5

'

R

4

8

'
R

5

5

'

R

4
8
'
R

5

5

'
R

1

0

'
 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

1

0

'x
7

0

' 
S

I
G

H

T

 
E

S

M

T

2
0
' P

R
IV

A
T

E

S
T

O
R

M
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

2

0

'
 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

O

R

M

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

2

0

'
 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

O

R

M

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

2

0

'
 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

O

R

M

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

O

R

M

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

2

0

'
 
P

R

I
V

A

T

E

S

T

O

R

M

 
E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

2
0
'
 
P

R
I
V

A
T

E

S
T

O
R

M
 
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

4

0

'
x

4

0

'

S

I

G

N
E

S

M

T

4

0

'
x

4

0

'

S

I

G

N

E

S

M

T

2

5

'

R

2

5

'
R

2

5

'
R

2

5

'
R

2

5

'

R

2

5

'

R

2

5

'
R

1

4

.

0

0

'

1

0

'
x

7

0

'
 
S

I
G

H

T

 
E

S

M

T

3

0

'
 

T

Y

P

E

 

I

I

I

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

Y

A

R

D

N

E

G

A

T

I

V

E

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

 

E

S

M

N

T

L

E

W

I

S

V

I

L

L

E

-

C

L

E

M

M

O

N

S

 

R

O

A

D

(

S

R

 

1

1

5

6

)

R

/

W

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

N

E

G

A

T

I

V

E

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

 

E

S

M

N

T

1
0
'x

7
0
' 
S

IG

H

T
 E

S
M

T

L

O

N

G

W

O

O

D

 

V

I

L

L

A

G

E

 

D

R

(

5

0

'
 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

/

W

)

 

-

 

7

3

5

 

L

F

LONGWOOD VILLAGE DR

(50' PUBLIC R/W) - 553 LF

20' P
RIV

ATE

STORM
 E

ASEM
ENT

A

P

P

R

O

X

.
 
S

T

R

E

A

M

 
L

O

C

A

T

I
O

N

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

O

R

M

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

8
1
0

1

0

'
R

1

0

'

R

1
1
.
2
5
'

2

5

'

R

2

5

'

R

2

5

'
R

2

5

'
R

2

5

'R

2

5

'R

2

5

'
R

E

X

 

8

"

 

W

/

L

 

 

F

C

 

M

A

P

 

#

6

E

X

 

S

A

N

 

S

E

W

E

R

 

 

C

O

W

S

 

P

R

O

J

 

#

2

0

6

7

E

X

 
8

"

 
V

C

P

 
S

A

N

 
S

E

W

E

R

 
 
C

O

W

S

 
P

R

O

J

 
#

8

3

0

6

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

O

R

M

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

S

S

S

S

1

2

"
 
R

C

P

EX RET WALL

EX RET WALL

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

FM
FM

FM

2

5

'
 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

2

5

'
 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

1

0

0

'
 

U

N

D

E

V

E

L

O

P

E

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

2

5

'
 
U

N

D

I
S

T

U

R

B

E

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

 
B

U

F

F

E

R

2

5

'
 
U

N

D

I
S

T

U

R

B

E

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

 
B

U

F

F

E

R

1
0
0
'
 
U

N

D

E
V

E
L
O

P
E

D

S
T

R

E
A

M

 
B

U

F
F

E
R

A

P

P

R

O

X

.
 
S

T

R

E

A

M

L

O

C

A

T

I
O

N

A

P

P

R

O

X

.

 

S

T

R

E

A

M

 

L

O

C

A

T

I

O

N

2

5

'

 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

2

5

'

 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

1

0

0

'

 

U

N

D

E

V

E

L

O

P

E

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

1

0

'

x

7

0

'

S

I

G

H

T

 

E

S

M

T

20' PRIVATE

STORM EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE

STORM EASEMENT

20' PUBLIC SEWER

UTILITY EASEMENT

40' PRIVATE

STORM EASEMENT

20' PUBLIC SEWER

UTILITY EASEMENT

2

0

'
 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

O

R

M

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

4

"

 
S

D

R

 
2

1

 
P

V

C

 
F

O

R

C

E

 
M

A

I
N

C

O

W

S

 
P

R

O

J

 
#

1

0

6

9

4

1

2

"

 

D

I

P

 

W

/

L

C

O

W

S

 

P

R

O

J

 

#

1

0

6

9

4

4

"

 
D

I
P

 
F

O

R

C

E

 
M

A

I
N

C

O

W

S

 
P

R

O

J

 
#

1

0

6

9

4

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

M

F

W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F

W

F

W

F
W

F
W

F

W

F

W

F

W

F

1

F
1

F
1

F

1

F
1

F

1

F

1

F
1

F

1

F

1

F

W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F
W

F

W

F
W

F

W

F
W

F
W

F

W

F

W

F

W

F

W

F

W

F

1

F

1

F
1

F
1

F

1

F

1

F

1

F

1

F

1

F
1

F
1

F
1

F
1

F

1

F

1

F

1

F

1

F
1

F

1

F
1

F

1

F

1

F

1

F

1

F

1

F

5

F

5

8
3
0

8

2

5

8

2

0

8

2

0

82
0

8

3

0

8

4

0

8

1

5

8

2

0

8

3

0

8

1

5

8

2

0

83
0

8

5

0

8

5

0

8

6

0

8
6
0

866

8

6

0

8

6

0

8

5

0

850

8

5

0

8

5

0

85
8

8
5
6

85
8

8

5

0

8
3
0

8

2

8

8

1

2

81
4

8

3

2

850
8
6
0

COMMON

AREA

72,050 SF

24.0'

SUSAN J. JEWELL

REVOCABLE TRUST

PIN: 5885-71-7407

BLOCK: 4433J LOT 0006

ZONING: RS20

MARY BINGHAM

PIN: 5885-71-4582

BLOCK: 4433J LOT 000A

ZONING: RS20

MARY BINGHAM

PIN: 5885-81-0579

BLOCK: 4433J LOT 0001

ZONING: RS20

KENNETH D. CRAVEN

ANGELA R. CRAVEN

PIN: 5885-71-9596

BLOCK: 4433J LOT 0002

ZONING: RS20

FABIO B. ANELLO

JOLENE M. ANELLO

PIN: 5885-71-9513

BLOCK: 4433J LOT 0003

ZONING: RS20

LINDA E. BROOKS

PIN: 5885-71-8531

BLOCK: 4433J LOT 0004

ZONING: RS20

EDWARD W. HARRELL

DEBORAH F. HARRELL

PIN: 5885-71-7552

BLOCK: 4433J LOT 0005

ZONING: RS20

5
0
%

 
M

A

X

I
M

U

M

 
F

I
L
L
 
L
I
N

E

8

2

8

8

2

4

856

8
3
8

8

4

4

838

8

4

8

8

5

6

8
4
8

8

3

6

82
4

8

3

6

2

0

'

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

F

I

R

E

D

E

P

T

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

MARY BINGHAM

PIN: 5885-71-4582

BLOCK: 4433J LOT 000A

ZONING: RS20

F

M

2
0
' P

U

B
L
IC

U

T
IL

IT
Y

 E
A

S
E

M

E
N

T

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

) ) )

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

O

R

M

W

A

T

E

R

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

2

0

'
 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

S

E

W

E

R

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

2

0

'
 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

S

E

W

E

R

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

2

0

'
 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
S

E

W

E

R

U

T

I
L

I
T

Y

 
E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

F

5

F

5

F

5

F
5

F

5

F
5

F

5

F

5

F
5

F
5

F

5

F
5

F

5

F
5

F

5

F
5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

F

5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17
18

19

2021

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49
50

51

52

53
54

55

56

57
58

59

60

2

0

'
 
P

U

B

L

I
C

U

T

I
L

I
T

Y

 
E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

20' TYPE II BUFFERYARD

20' TYPE II BUFFERYARD

SITE PLAN

REZONING AND

PRELIMINARY

REVIEW ONLY

FOR PLANNING BOARD

L
E

W
I
S

V
I
L

L
E

-
C

L
E

M
M

O
N

S
 
R

O
A

D

C
L

E
M

M
O

N
S

,
 
N

C

A
L

L
E

G
R

O
 
I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

I
E

S
,
 
L

L
C

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

1
0

/
0

4
/
1

9

S
M

C

1
9

-
0

4
8

W
A

B

PIN: 5885-70-8928

FAX: (336) 760-8886

OWNER:

KAPLAN PARTNERS

1310 LEWISVILLE-CLEMMONS ROAD

LEWISVILLE, NC 27023

SITE DATA

ALLIED DESIGN, INC.

WINSTON-SALEM, N.C. 27103

4720 KESTER MILL ROAD

STEVE M. CAUSEY, P.E.

scausey@allied-engsurv.com

PHONE: (336) 765-2377

ENGINEER:

SITE

NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

C1

PLAN

PRELIMINARY

SUBDIVISION

h
t
t
p
:
/
/
w

w
w

.
a
l
l
i
e
d
-
e
n
g
s
u
r
v
.
c
o
m

F
a
x
:
 
 
(
3
3
6
)
 
7
6
0
-
8
8
8
6

4
7
2
0
 
K

E
S

T
E

R
 
M

I
L
L
 
R

O
A

D

P
h
o
n
e
:
 
 
(
3
3
6
)
 
7
6
5
-
2
3
7
7

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 

W
I
N

S
T

O
N

-
S

A
L
E

M
,
 
N

O
R

T
H

 
C

A
R

O
L
I
N

A
 
2
7
1
0
3

A
l
l
i
e

d
 
D

e
s
i
g

n
,
 
I
n

c
.

D
A

T
E

:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
.
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

SHEET

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
S

K
E

T
C

H
 
P

L
A

N
 
R

E
V

I
E

W

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

N
O

.

A
1
0
/
0
4
/
1
9

FIRM LICENSE C-1891

R/W

R/W

PROPOSED BUA

HOME:                   3,600 SF

DRIVES/WALKS:   1,480 SF

TOTAL:                  5,080 SF

PROPOSED ROAD

NOT TO SCALE

RM5-S TYPICAL BUILDING LAYOUT

APPROVAL OF A REZONING OF SUBJECT

PURPOSE STATEMENT:  THE PURPOSE OF THIS SUBMITTAL IS FOR:

JURISDICTION:

LEWISVILLE
X

SPECIAL USE REZONING

REVIEW INFORMATION

TYPE OF REVIEW:

PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION

X

X

X

PRIVATEPUBLIC

LINEAR FEET OF PUBLIC STREETS: FT

1,288

X

WATER:

SEWER:

STREETS:

INFRASTRUCTURE

RESIDENTIAL BUILDING, TOWNHOUSE
PROPOSED USE(S):

OFF-STREET PARKING

REQUIRED PARKING:
2

SPACES PER RESIDENCE

SPACES X 60 LOTS = 120
2

REQUIRED PARKING:
120 SPACES

120 SPACES
PARKING PROVIDED:

                                                         GENERAL NOTES

1.  EXISTING SITE BOUNDARY INFORMATION TAKEN FROM FORSYTH COUNTY TAX

RECORD.

2.  ALL DEVELOPMENT SHALL CONFORM WITH THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE

"UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE".

3. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO EDGE OF PAVEMENT, BACK OF CURB AND FACE OF

BUILDING, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  VERIFY ALL BUILDING DIMENSIONS

WITH ARCHITECT PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION.

4. PUBLIC WATER AND SEWER SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY-COUNTY UTILITIES COMMISSION.

5.  ALL WATER AND SEWER MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP SHALL CONFORM

TO THE STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS OF THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM,

JANUARY 1999, EDITION.

6. PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN THE WS-IV YADKIN RIVER WATERSHED.

7. THE STREET WIDTH SHOWN ON THE SITE PLAN ALLOWS FOR ON STREET

PARKING ON ONE SIDE OF THE STREET ONLY.

EASEMENT
25'-0"

27'-0"

13'-6"

25'-0"

13'-6"

SHOULDER

11'-6"

SHOULDER

11'-6"

2%

12"

UNDER CURB AND GUTTER

3" MINIMUM DEPTH

STORM SEWER

4'-0"

3' MINMUM COVER

WATER

2%

3' MINIMUM COVER

SANITARY SEWER

2%

12"

2%

1.5' MINIMUM COVER

NOT TO SCALE

TYPICAL SECTION VALLEY CURB AND GUTTER

1" SURFACE COURSE

8" COMPACTED ABC

VALLEY CURB AND GUTTER

4'-0"

2" BASE

S/W

4" THICK CONC.

21"

7"

9"

2%

1

:

1

9.5"

9"

VALLEY CURB AND GUTTER DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

CABC (3" MINIMUM)

3
"

5'-0" 

6'-6"

10'-0"

UTILITY

EASEMENT

10'-0"

UTILITY

S/W

5'-0" 

6'-6"

DEVELOPER:
ALLEGRO INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, LLC

380H KNOLLWOOD STREET, #253

WINSTON-SALEM, NC 27103

X

ACRE(S)
13.57

SITE COVERAGES:

TOTAL

OPEN SPACE

PAVEMENT TO LAND

BUILDING TO LAND

100

65.16

16.61

18.23

%

%

%

%

SITE SIZE AND COVERAGES

TOTAL ACREAGE:

RESIDENTIAL BUILDING, SINGLE-FAMILY,
PROPOSED USES:

PROPOSED ZONING:
RM5-S

RS9-S
EXISTING ZONING:

ZONING

(STREET, SIDEWALKS AND DRIVEWAYS)

40'
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT:  

UNITS/LOTS PER ACREDENSITY:
4.42

60
# OF UNITS OR LOTS:

DENSITY CALCULATIONS

BUFFERYARDS

ADJOINING ZONING:
RS9, RS20, HB-S

TYPE II
TYPE REQUIRED:

WIDTH PROVIDED:

20' AGAINST RESIDENTIAL

0.75

NUMBER OF SEGMENTS:

STREET INDEX CALCULATION

3

4NUMBER OF NODES:

SEGMENTS / NODES:

N

 

3

7

°

3

3

'

5

4

"

 

W

3

7

8

.

2

6

'

S

 

6

9

°

1

0

'
3

7

"

 

W

3

5

4

.

2

8

'

S

 

4

1

°

5

6

'

0

8

"

 

E

5

5

0

.

1

0

'

S

 

4

9

°

3

2

'

0

9

"

 

W

9

.

9

7

'

N

 

2

1

°

5

4

'
3

1

"

 

W

3

4

5

.

8

0

'

N

 

3

7

°

3

3

'

5

4

"

 

W

8

0

.

6

7

'

S

 

6

9

°

1

0

'
3

7

"

 

W

4

5

5

.

0

3

'

S

 

4

1

°

2

2

'

4

0

"

 

E

1

4

6

.

8

7

'

S

 

4

1

°

3

2

'

4

5

"

 

E

1

2

9

.

9

5

'

N

 

7

0

°

0

0

'
3

6

"

 

E

6

6

1

.

8

2

'

PIN: 5885-70-8928

KAPLAN PARTNERS

ZONED: RS9S

PIN: 5885-70-8928

KAPLAN PARTNERS

ZONED: HB-S

PIN: 5885-61-6105

KAPLAN PARTNERS

ZONED: HB-S

PIN: 5885-80-3491

KAPLAN PARTNERS

ZONED: HB-S

PIN: 5885-70-8928

KAPLAN PARTNERS

ZONED: RS9S

PARCELS TO BE REZONED

BEARING AND DISTANCES

SCALE: 1"=400'

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G
 
B

O
A

R
D

 
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
B

0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
T

R
C

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
C

0
3
/
1
1
/
2
0

SMALL OR MEDIUM

VARIETY STREET TREES

-

1 TREE REQUIRED PER

45 LINEAR FEET OF

STREET

SMALL OR MEDIUM

VARIETY STREET TREES

-

1 TREE REQUIRED PER

45 LINEAR FEET OF

STREET

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
P

R
E

-
S

U
B

M
I
T

T
A

L
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
D

0
6
/
1
6
/
2
1

THE MINIMUM STREET INDEX CALCULATION FOR THIS

PROJECT CANNOT BE MET.  THE LOCATION OF THE

FLOODPLAIN ALONG THE SOUTHERN PORTION OF THE

PROPERTY PROHIBITS A CONNECTING STREET IN THAT

AREA.  ALSO, THE EXISTING LOT PATTERNS AND

DEVELOPMENT OF THE ADJACENT PROPERTIES DO NOT

ALLOW FOR STUB STREET CONNECTIONS.

PIN: 5885-81-1348

5' WIDE CONCRETE SIDEWALK ALONG THE

ENTIRE FRONTAGE OF PROPERTY PER

THE UDO PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIONS

OVERLAY.  SIDEWALK LOCATION AND

INSTALLATION MAY NEED TO BE

COORDINATED WITH A POTENTIAL ROAD

WIDENING OF LEWISVILLE-CLEMMONS

ROAD.  DEVELOPER MAY OFFER PAYMENT

IN LIEU OF INSTALLATION BASED ON

THESE ISSUES.

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G
 
B

O
A

R
D

 
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
E

0
7
/
0
6
/
2
1

PROPERTY FROM RS9-S TO RM5-S.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
D

R
I
V

E
W

A
Y

7
2
'
±

28'±

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
D

R
I
V

E
W

A
Y

28'±

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
S

K
E

T
C

H
 
P

L
A

N
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
F

1
0
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
2

1-DECIDUOUS

TREE

5-SHRUBS

20'

100'

20' TYPE II BUFFERYAYRD REQUIREMENTS

PER 100 LF

6-PRIMARY

EVERGREEN

TREES

5-SHRUBS

1-DECIDUOUS

TREE

6-PRIMARY

EVERGREEN

TREES

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
P

R
E

-
S

U
B

M
I
T

T
A

L
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
G

1
0
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2

DUPLEX, TOWNHOUSE AND TWIN HOME

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G
 
B

O
A

R
D

 
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
H

1
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2

REZONING AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
25



RS9

HB-S

RS20

HB
RS30

HB-S

RS9-S

RM8-S
HB-S

RS9
HB-S

RS9

HB

RS9-S

RM12-S

RM12-S

HB-S

RS9

MH

HB

RM12-S

PB-S

HB-S

RS9-S

RS9

LO-L

SB 421

NB 421

LEONS

LEWISVILLE-CLEMMONS

KELWYN

UT
ILI

TY

AL
BA

ST
YE

RS
 FE

RR
Y

CRENATA

LALANDA

DAW
NLEA

DAMON

PEGRAM FARM

OA
KE

NC
RO

FT

FOUNTAIN VIEW

FELDSPAR

CR
OS

SW
IC

K

KENSFORD

FOUNTAIN BROOK

SB 421_LEWISVILLE-CLEMMONS RD

LINDEN HILL
CEDAR HOLLO

W

This map and anaysis are provided "As Is" without warranty of any kind, either express or implied.  The information containted in this map is for 
informational purposes only and was not prepared for, and is not suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  Use of these materials 
constitutes acceptance of this disclaimer of liability.

Created by:  Stacy Tolbert

L-105 Longwood Village Twin Homes REZ

1 inch = 500 feet

¯

PIN #:  585-81-1348 &
a portion of 

5885-70-8928

Legend
CENTERLINES
Legal Lot Lines
Streams
Pond / Lake

Property of 
Request

Lewisville

500 ft. Buffer

Village of 
Clemmons

Zoning





LONGWOOD VILLAGE 

Mcuce,, y()tMI'� (N' hoWf.e/ hev& ... 

Petition to Rezone and Subdivision Plan Approval 
Petition Summarv I Rezonine: and aooroval of Lon�ood Villae:e Subdivision Plan, Lewisville.! NC 
Action Petitioned For I We, the undersigned urge our leaders to rezone the property hereafter know as Longwood Village from 

RS9-S to RM5-S and aoorove the oreliminarv site olan. 

Printed Name 

S.fe11e_111 

Address/E-Mail/Phone Number I Comment 

/J�I?' le,,.,,,)vfl/, tit-on fl-d 

l3Q$"_ Le�)s_u.fb c/a,-· __ ., 1 Lec.c.)s�t�

C ?·/ /?- [1/'F";,,,,,..,.,-_.

\\t... -C:..\t.WV\ 1"1'\ 1;) N 

CJfrb0vi.v I lew(S v//1 e 

D 
i,Ef,,JJ�fLLLl?

···a, l\�--- ---

Date 

'i/JI' /vi 
'l/5d/a;i 
?/5o/z,z_ 

/P/y/·;::, � 

\: 
tols// 



ORDINANCE 2023-006 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCES AND 

ZONING MAP OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE  

Conditional District Rezoning from RS—9-C (Residential Single family, minimum lot size 9,000 sq. ft) to 
RM-5-C (Residential Multi-Family, maximum 5 units per acre) 

 (Zoning Docket L-105) 
1138 Lewisville-Clemmons Road 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville published notification of this conditional zoning request on January 22, 
2023 and January 29, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville has received an affidavit of publication for the aforementioned dates; 
and 

WHEREAS, sign posting of the property occurred on November 1, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, these procedures have been performed and certified by Town staff in accordance with North 
Carolina land use regulations found in NCGS 160D-601; and,  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council accepts the staff report; and 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board held a public hearing and rendered its recommendation 
of approval to Council at their December 14, 2022 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board has favorably recommended approval of the request to 
the Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, the uses requested are allowed under RM-5-C (Residential Multi-Family, maximum 5 units 

per acre) zoning district; and 

WHEREAS, higher density residential development is encouraged in this area by the Lewisville 
Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the Lewisville Town Council finds the proposed conditional 
district rezoning is consistent with and conforms to the goals and recommendations of the Lewisville 
Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan, Legacy Development Guide and Lewisville Greenway and Pedestrian 
Connections Plan.  Further, we find that the action to be taken is reasonable and in the public interest and 
therefore approve the zoning map amendment and site plan.  

Attachment #12



 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1: The Town of Lewisville Official Zoning Map of the Town of Lewisville, North Carolina are 

hereby amended. 
 
Section 2: The property is 13.57 acres, PIN 5885-70-8928 (portion) and 5885-81-0388, located at 

1138 Lewisville-Clemmons Road as shown on the attached site plan. 
 
Section 3: This ordinance shall be effective from and after its adoption. 
 
Adopted this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 
         __________________________ 
ATTEST:         Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2023-007 

SUBJECT: BUDGET AMENDMENT TO INCREASE THE BUDGET FOR 
THE COMMUNITY POLICING CONTRACT 

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 2/2/2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

On January 5, 2023 the Forsyth County Commissioners approved mid-year salary adjustments within the Sheriff’s 
Department to counteract rising vacancy numbers and a labor market that continues to be extremely tough and 
competitive. As a result, the County estimates that the increase to our community policing contract for the current 
year will be approximately $7,640. Also, the cost of mileage continues to be high, as they have to recruit from 
distances further away, and there are inflationary impacts, especially with uniform costs, small equipment and 
supplies. The County suggests that the Town of Lewisville may want to amend their own budget for these factors 
so there are no budget violations at the end of the year. The estimated revised budget for the community policing 
contract is as follows: 

Original budget from Sheriff's Department 736,420$   

Estimated mid-year salary adjustments 7,640$   

Contingency 10% 74,406$   

Estimated revised budget 818,466$   

Current budget 758,300$   

Budget Amendment 60,166$   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION :  

Staff is requesting that Council approve Ordinance 2023-007 in the amount of $60,166 to increase the budget for 
the community policing contract. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The budget amendment is in the amount of $60,166 and is to be appropriated out of General Fund Balance. 

Attachment #13



C:\Users\townclerk\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\PUN5PPBQ\Staff Report-Budget Amendment-Community Policing.docx 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Ordinance 2023-007 - Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 – To increase the budget for the community 
policing contract. 

 
 



CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

10-10-5100-6000

Community Policing - 

Contracted Services 60,166.00$   10-00-3990-9000

General Fund - Fund Balance 

Appropriated 60,166.00$   

60,166.00$   60,166.00$   

EXPLANATION: To increase the budget for the community policing contract for the mid-year salary raises 

given to the Sheriff's Office by Forsyth County and for possible inflationary overages in

other items such as supplies and small equipment.

RECOMMENDED BY:  Pam Orrell, Town Finance Director

Approved and effective upon adoption this the 9th day of February  2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

ATTEST:

Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk

Budget Amendment # 23

Pam Orrell, Finance Officer 

TOWN OF LEWISVILLE

Budget Amendment Ordinance 2023-007

Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001

FINANCE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2023-008 

SUBJECT: BUDGET AMENDMENT TO INCREASE RIGHT-OF-WAY 
MAINTENANCE 

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 2/9/2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

For the streets that are owned by the Town of Lewisville, we budget for the maintenance of their right-of-way’s. 
These expenditures are paid out of Powell Bill funds provided by the State. Right-of-way maintenance includes bush 
hogging, flail mowing, and the removal of fallen trees due to wind storms or snow storms. The budget as originally 
adopted as of 7/1/2022 for right-of-way maintenance was $33,500. Of that approximately $20,500 is used for 
mowing. The remaining budget of $13,000 is needed for fallen tree removal. The portion for fallen tree removal is 
almost depleted. With five months remaining in the fiscal year, and with the possibility of snow storms and spring 
wind storms, I am requesting that the budget for right-of-way maintenance be increased by $20,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION :  

Staff is requesting that Council approve Ordinance 2023-008 in the amount of $20,000 to increase the budget for 
right-of-way maintenance to be paid out of Powell Bill funds. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The budget amendment is in the amount of $20,000 to be appropriated out of General Fund Balance. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Ordinance 2023-008 - Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 – To increase the budget for right-
of-way maintenance to be paid out of Powell Bill funds.

Attachment #14



CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

10-00-5650-6212

Powell Bill - Right-of-Way 

Maintenance 20,000.00$   10-00-3990-9000

General Fund - Fund Balance 

Appropriated 20,000.00$   

20,000.00$   20,000.00$   

EXPLANATION: To increase the budget for right-of-way maintenance to be paid out of Powell Bill funds.

RECOMMENDED BY:  Pam Orrell, Town Finance Director

Approved and effective upon adoption this the 9th day of February  2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

ATTEST:

Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk

Budget Amendment # 24

Pam Orrell, Finance Officer 

TOWN OF LEWISVILLE

Budget Amendment Ordinance 2023-008

Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001

FINANCE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: RESOLUTION 2023-007 

SUBJECT: CONTRACT WITH RUSSELL CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR 
ASPHALT PATCH ON TULLYRIES LANE 

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 2/2/2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

An area the size of 33 feet x 15 feet on Tullyries Lane needs an asphalt patch. Staff has received a quote from Russell 
Construction Company to perform the repair work which will be paid out of Powell Bill funding. As the contract 
exceeds $10,000, Council approval is required. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting that Council approve Resolution 2023-007 to approve the contract with Russell Construction 
Company for an asphalt patch on Tullyries Lane for $10,960. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The contract is for an amount not to exceed $10,960 and will be paid for out of Powell Bill revenues (General Fund). 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Resolution 2023-007 – Awarding contract for asphalt patch on Tullyries Lane 

Contract with Russell Construction 

Attachment #15



 
RESOLUTION 2023-007 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AWARDING CONTRACT FOR ASPHALT PATCH ON TULLYRIES LANE 
 

 
WHEREAS, a 33’ x 15’ area on Tullyries Lane needs an asphalt patch; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Russell Construction Company has been selected to complete the project per the attached 
agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves and authorizes the 
Town Manager to execute an agreement with Russell Construction Company in the amount of $10,960. 
 
Adopted and effective this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 
             

______________________________ 
ATTEST:        Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: RESOLUTION 2023-008 

SUBJECT: CONTRACT WITH RUSSELL CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR 
SIDEWALK AND DRAINAGE REPAIRS ALONG 
SHALLOWFORD ROAD AT LEWISVILLE UNITED 
METHODIST CHURCH 

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 2/2/2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

A 22’ x 25’ area of the sidewalk along Shallowford Road at Lewisville United Methodist Church has suffered water 
damage and needs repair. As the contract amount of $13,620 exceeds $10,000, Council approval is necessary. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting that Council approve Resolution 2023-008 to approve the contract with Russell Construction 
Company for sidewalk and drainage repairs along Shallowford Road at Lewisville United Methodist Church for 
$13,620. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The contract is for an amount not to exceed $13,620 and will be paid for out of the Storm Water Department of the 

General Fund. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Resolution 2023-008 – Awarding contract for sidewalk repairs 

Contract with Russell Construction 

Attachment #16



 
RESOLUTION 2023-008 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SIDEWALK REPAIRS 
 

 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department monitors Town sidewalks for hazards; and 
 
WHEREAS, a 22’ x 25’ area of sidewalk located along Shallowford Road at Lewisville United Methodist 
Church has suffered water damage; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Russell Construction Company has been selected to complete the project per the attached 
agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves and authorizes the 
Town Manager to execute an agreement with Russell Construction Company in the amount of $13,620. 
 
Adopted and effective this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 
             

______________________________ 
ATTEST:        Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2023-009 

SUBJECT: PLANNING BOARD & ZBOA CHARTER CHANGE – TERM 
LIMITS 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

DATE SUBMITTED: FEBRUARY 2, 2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustments charter currently reflects term limits.  At the January 2023 
Council retreat, Council requested the charter be updated to reflect no term limits.  

The ordinance presented to Council is redlined on pages 1 and 2 so Council can review the proposed change.  

The proposed revision presented to Council only addresses term limits.  All board and committee charters are 
currently being reviewed and additional proposed changes will be shared with Council in the coming months.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff recommends Ordinance 2023-009 be approved by Council. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Ordinance 2023-009 – Amending Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustments charter

Attachment #17



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

1 

WHEREAS, the General Statutes of North Carolina, Chapter 160A, Article 19 provides for the 
establishment and operation of a municipal planning board; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has previously adopted an ordinance establishing its Planning Board and 
Zoning Board of Adjustment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Beautification Committee is named as a member of the Planning Organization; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council needs the active assistance and constant cooperation of many civic-minded 
citizensresidents in their efforts to serve the best interests of the people and to direct development of the 
Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, the ordinance has been amended to include membership and vacancies as described in 
Ordinance 2006024 and the expiration of terms from December 31 and extending to the next occurring 
March 31; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council has clarified when newly appointed board members are seated and amended Chapter 
10 of the Town Code to reflect the change. 
 
WHEREAS, Council has determined that term limits are not necessary.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL amends Chapter 10 to provide 
for an alternative for the election of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Board and Zoning Board of 
Adjustmenteliminate term limits for the Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustments. 
 

SECTION 1.  Scope of Planning. 
 

Every action and program of every component of the Town of Lewisville involves planning, in a 
broad sense of the term.  For purposes of this ordinance, the term is restricted to activities and programs 
involving physical, economic, and social development of the town. 
 

SECTION 2.  Planning Agencies. 
 

The following are designated as planning agencies assigned responsibilities under this ordinance: 
The Town Council, the Planning Board, the Zoning Board of Adjustment, the Lewisville Beautification 
Committee, and the Office of the Town Manager. 
 

SECTION 3.  Town Council. 
 



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

2 

In its legislative capacity, the Town Council adopts policies, ordinances, and amendments; 
appropriates funds; approves acquisitions, construction, and disposition of public facilities; and oversees 
administration of the town.  In its quasi-judicial or administrative capacity, it issues special-use permits 
or conditional-use permits specified for its review under the zoning ordinance (G.S. 160A-381), and gives 
final approval to plats of proposed subdivisions (G.S. 160A-373). 
 

SECTION 4.  Town Planning Board. 
 

The Town Planning Board of the Town of Lewisville is hereby created, in accordance with the 
following provisions. 

 
A. Membership and Vacancies. 

 
From and after July 1, 2004 the Planning Board shall consist of seven (7) members. From the 

period beginning on July 1, 2003 until June 30, 2004 the Planning Board shall consist of five (5) members 
with an additional two (2) members who shall serve as ex-officio members. The ex-officio members shall 
have no voting authority and shall not be treated as Planning Board members for the purpose of 
determining the outcome of votes, the presence of a quorum or any other purpose.  Except for the two 
(2) ex-officio members prior to July 1, 2004, who shall be residents of the Vienna annexation area,   all 
members of the Planning Board shall be citizensresidents and residents of the Town of Lewisville and shall 
be appointed by the Town Council. Members will be appointed for terms of three (3) years, except for the 
first appointment of the two (2) new members of the Planning Board when the size of the Planning Board 
is increased to seven (7) on July 1, 2004. The terms of these two (2) new members shall be for the following 
periods: one of the new members will serve from July 1, 2004 to December 31, 2006 and the other new 
member will serve from July 1, 2004 to December 31, 2007. Vacancies occurring for reasons other than 
expiration of terms shall be filled as they occur for the period of the unexpired term.  
 

Commencing with terms expiring in December, 2005, upon the expiration of the term of a 
Planning Board member, such Planning Board member shall be limited to a maximum of three (3) 
consecutive terms from and after December, 2005, and shall be ineligible for reappointment to the 
Planning Board for a period of three (3) years thereafter; provided, however, if, at the end of the term of 
a Planning Board member who is not eligible for reappointment due to the limit on consecutive terms, no 
different  replacement applies for the position or obtains the required vote to be elected to the position, 
then such a member may be appointed for one (1) additional term.  In 2006, Council determined that 
the terms should end on March 31 rather than December 31, and extended all terms of then serving 
members from the date their terms would have expired to the next occurring March 31.  New terms 
shall commence on April 1. Board members shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the Council, 
each to serve an unlimited number of three (3)-year terms. 
 



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

3 

Members may be removed by the Town Council. 
 
 

B. Organization, Rules, Meetings, and Records. 
 

(1) At the first scheduled meeting following April 1 or, based on the Board’s meeting 
schedule, the first scheduled meeting following appointments made at the March Council meeting, 
whichever comes first, the Planning Board shall meet and elect a chair, vice chair and create and fill such 
offices as it may determine.  The term of the chair, vice chair and other officers shall be one year, with 
eligibility for reelection.  The Board shall adopt rules of attendance of its members and for transaction 
of its business and shall keep records of its members’ attendance and of its resolutions, discussions, 
findings, and recommendations, which shall be public records.  The Board shall hold at least one meeting 
monthly, and all of its meetings shall be open to the public.  There shall be a quorum of four (4) members 
for the purpose of taking any official action. 
 

C. General Powers and Duties. 
 

It shall be the duty of the Planning Board, in general: 
 
(1) To acquire and maintain in current form such basic information and materials as are necessary 

to understanding of past trends, present conditions, and forces at work to cause changes in these 
conditions; 
 

(2) To identify needs and problems growing out of those trends; 
 

(3) To determine objectives to be sought in development of the area; 
 

(4) To establish principles and policies for guiding action in development of the area; 
 

(5) To prepare and recommend to the Town Council and from time to time, recommend 
amendments and revisions to a comprehensive and coordinated plan for the physical, social, and 
economic development of the area; 
 

(6) To prepare and recommend to the Town Council ordinances promoting orderly development 
along lines indicated in the comprehensive plan and advise it concerning proposed amendments of such 
ordinances; 
 

(7) To determine whether specific proposed developments conform to the principles and 
requirements of the comprehensive plan for the growth and improvement of the area and ordinances 



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

4 

adopted in furtherance of such plan; 
 
 

(8) To keep the Town Council and the general public informed and advised as to these matters; 
and 
 

(9) To perform any other duties that may lawfully be assigned to it. 
 

D.  Basic Studies. 
 

As background for its comprehensive plan and any ordinances it may prepare, the Planning Board 
may gather maps and aerial photographs of physical features of the area; statistics on past trends and 
present conditions with respect to population, property values, the economic base of the area, and land 
use; and such other information as is important or likely to be important in determining the amount, 
direction, and kind of development to be expected in the area and its various parts. 
 

In addition, the Planning Board may make, cause to be made, or obtain special studies on the 
location, the condition, and the adequacy of specific facilities, which may include, but are not limited to, 
studies of housing; commercial and industrial facilities; parks, playgrounds, and other recreational 
facilities; public and private utilities; and traffic, transportation, and parking facilities. 
 

All Town officials shall, upon request, furnish to the Planning Board such available records or 
information as it may require in its work.  The Board or its agents may, in the performance of its official 
duties, enter upon lands and make examinations or surveys and maintain necessary monuments thereon. 
 

E.  Comprehensive Plan. 
 

The Planning Board shall prepare and submit to the Town Council for its consideration and 
possible adoption, a comprehensive plan, with the accompanying maps, plats, charts, and descriptive 
matter, showing the Planning Board’s recommendations to the Town Council for the development of said 
territory, including, among other things, the general location, character, and extent of streets, bridges, 
boulevards, parkways, playgrounds, squares, parks, aviation fields, and other public ways, grounds, and 
open spaces; the general location and extent of public utilities and terminals, whether publicly or privately 
owned or operated, for water, light, sanitation, transportation, communication, power, and other 
purposes; the removal, relocation, widening, narrowing, vacating, abandonment, change of use, or 
extension of any of the foregoing ways, building, grounds, open spaces, property, utilities, or terminals; 
and the most desirable pattern of land use within the area, including areas for farming and forestry, for 
manufacturing and industrial uses, for commercial uses, for recreational uses, for open spaces, and for 
mixed uses.  The Planning Board shall use as its basis the plan previously informally adopted by the Town 



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

5 

Council. 
 
 
The plan and any ordinances or other measures to effectuate it recommended by the Planning 

Board shall be made with the general purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted, and 
harmonious development of the town and its environs that will, in accordance with present and future 
needs, best promote health, safety, morals, and the general welfare, as well as efficiency and economy in 
the process of development; including, among other things, adequate provision for traffic, of the healthful 
and convenient distribution of population, the promotion of good civic design and arrangement, wise and 
efficient expenditure of public funds, and the adequate provision of public utilities, services, and other 
public requirements. 
 

F.  Subdivision Regulations. 
 

The Planning Board shall prepare and submit to the Town Council for its consideration and 
possible adoption, regulations controlling the subdivision of land in accordance with the provisions of Part 
2 Article 19 of Chapter 160A of the General Statutes as amended.  It shall review, from time to time, the 
effectiveness of such regulations and may make proposals to the Town Council for amendment or the 
improvement of those regulations and their enforcement. 
 

In accordance with the provisions of any regulations that are adopted, the Planning Board may 
review subdivision plats that are submitted and make recommendations to the Town Council concerning 
such plats. 
 

G.  Zoning Ordinance. 
 

The Planning Board shall prepare and submit to the Town Council for its consideration and 
possible adoption a zoning ordinance in accordance with the provision of Part 3 Article 19 of Chapter 160A 
of the General Statutes as amended. 
 

The Planning Board may initiate, from time to time, proposals for amendment of the zoning 
ordinance, based upon it studies and comprehensive plan.  In addition, it shall review and make 
recommendations to the Town Council concerning all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance. 
 

H.  Public Facilities. 
 

The Planning Board shall review with the Town Manager and other town officials and report its 
recommendations to the Town Council concerning the location, extent, and design of all proposed public 
structures and facilities; the acquisition and disposition of public properties; and the establishment of 



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

6 

building lines, mapped street lines, and proposals to change existing street lines.  The Board shall include 
transportation planning in its purview.  It shall also make recommendations concerning other matters 
referred to it by the Town Council. 
 

K.  Economic Development. 
 

The Planning Board may prepare and amend from time to time an economic development 
program for submission to the Town Council, as authorized by Section 158-13 of the General Statutes. 
 

L.  Miscellaneous Powers and Duties. 
 
The Planning Board may conduct such public hearings as may be required to gather information 

for the maintenance of the comprehensive plan.  Before proposing any changes to such plan to the Town 
Council, it shall hold at least one public hearing thereon. 
 

The Planning Board shall have power to promote public interest in and an understanding of its 
recommendations, and to that end it may publish and distribute copies of its recommendations and may 
employ such other means of publicity and education as it may elect. 
 

Members or employees of the Planning Board, when duly authorized by the Board, may attend 
planning conferences, meetings of planning associations, or hearings on pending planning legislation, and 
the Planning Board may authorize payment in accordance with Town policy and within the Planning 
Board’s budget. 
 

M. Report 
 

The Planning Board shall, in July of each year, submit in writing to the Town Council, a report of 
its activities and an analysis of its expenditures to date for the previous fiscal year and any other reports 
upon request by Council. 
 

N.  Funding 
 

(1)  The Board shall submit an annual budget request to the Town Manager by February 28th of 
each year. 
 

(2)  The Board’s budget shall include: 
 
(a)  The costs of items and/or contracts required to implement anticipated Board 

recommended projects. 



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

7 

 
(b) The costs of items and/or contracts required to sustain previous contracts and project. 

 
 

(c)  Expenditures must follow the town financial procedures. 
 

(d)  Expenditures must be approved in meetings and reflected in meeting minutes. 
 

(3)  Advisory Council and Special Committees. 
 

The Planning Board may establish an unofficial Advisory Council and may cooperate with that 
Council to the end that its investigations and plans may receive full consideration, but the Board may not 
delegate to such Advisory Council any of its official powers and duties. 
 

The Planning Board may from time to time establish special committees to assist it in studying 
specific questions and problems. 
 

SECTION 5.  Town Manager. 
 

The Town Manager and his/her assigned and/or contracted staff shall assist the Town Council, 
the Planning Board, the Zoning Board of Adjustment, the Lewisville Beautification Committee, and other 
appropriate agencies with studies, advice, and preparation plans. 
 

SECTION 6.  Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
 

The Zoning Board of Adjustment is charged with hearing appeals from the Zoning Administrator’s 
decisions; granting in specified circumstances special exceptions, special-use permits, or conditional-use 
permits under the zoning ordinance; and issuing variances under the zoning ordinance, all pursuant to 
provisions of Part 3 of Article 19 of Chapter 160A of the General Statutes and the zoning ordinance. 
 

In 2006, Council determined that the terms should end on March 31 rather than January 1, and 
extended all terms of then serving members from the date their terms would have expired to the next 
occurring March 31.  New terms shall commence on April 1. 
 

Chair: The Board membership shall select from among themselves a Chair. 
i. The Chair shall serve for one year. 

 
ii. The Chair shall be selected at the first scheduled meeting after April 1 or, based 

on the Board’s meeting schedule, the first scheduled meeting following 



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

8 

appointments made at the March Council meeting, whichever comes first. 
 
 

b. Vice-Chair: The Board membership shall select from among themselves a Vice-Chair. 
i. The Vice-Chair shall serve for one year. 

 
ii. The Vice-Chair shall be selected at the first scheduled meeting after April 1 or, 

based on the Board’s meeting schedule, the first scheduled meeting following 
appointments made at the March Council meeting, whichever comes first.  

 
SECTION 7.  Lewisville Beautification Committee. 

 
The Lewisville Beautification Committee develops and carries out voluntary programs, policies, 

and resolutions to improve community appearance and advises governmental agencies on aesthetic 
matters, pursuant to its charter. 
 

SECTION 8.  Inspection Service. 
 

Inspection services provided by town staff or contracted staff shall enforce the zoning ordinance, 
the sign ordinance, and other ordinances as assigned by the Town Council and the Manager.  The 
designated staff shall be responsible for issuing the appropriate permits, certificates, and orders for the 
purpose of appropriately maintaining the public welfare and safety. 
 

SECTION 9.  Transition. 
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County of Forsyth shall retain all planning authority and 
jurisdiction within the Town limits until the Town of Lewisville and the County of Forsyth have agreed in 
accordance with Town of Lewisville Ordinance Number 1, that such authority and jurisdiction have been 
transferred to and assumed by the Town of Lewisville.  
 

SECTION 10.  Appointment of the Initial Board (Procedures). 
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following special provisions shall apply only to the 
appointment of the initial Lewisville Planning Board: 
 
1.  Members. 
 

The Town Council shall select the five members of the Board from a pool of Lewisville 
CitizensResidents who have applied for a position as a Lewisville Planning Board member. 



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

9 

 
 
 
2.  Terms of Office. 

 
A.  Reference Section 4.  Town Planning Board, paragraph A.  Membership and Vacancies, the 

five initial members will serve for approximately one, two, or three years as appointed.    One (1) of the 
initial members shall be appointed for a term of one year; two (2), for two years; and two (2), for three 
years.   Their successors shall be appointed for terms of three years.  The one-year term shall expire 
December 31, 1995, the two-year terms shall expire December 31, 1996, and the three-year terms shall 
expire December 31, 1997. 
 
3.  Chair. 
 

Reference Section 4.  Town Planning Board, paragraph B.  Organization, Rules, Meetings and 
Records, the initial Chair shall be appointed by the Town Council whose term as Chair shall expire on 
December 31, 1995.  Subsequent Chairs shall be selected as described in Section 4, paragraph B, of this 
ordinance.   
 
 
Ordinance 10-94 Establishing Lewisville Planning Organization - 22 Sept 1994 
Ordinance 11-94 - Amendment 1 - 26 Oct 1994 
Ordinance 2003011 - Amendment 2 - June 12, 2003 
Ordinance 2005001 - Amendment 3 - August 11, 2005 
Ordinance 2006023 - Amendment 4 - July 13, 2006 
Ordinance 2006024 - Amendment 5 - July 13, 2006 
Ordinance 2014051 - Amendment 6 - October 9, 2014 
Ordinance 2015019 - Amendment 7 - February 12, 2015 
Ordinance 2016005 - Amendment 8 - March 10, 2016 
Ordinance 2018023 – Amendment 9 – March 8, 2018 

 
 
Adopted this 8th 9th day of March, 2018February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                  
                                              Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 



 
TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ORDINANCE 2018023 2023-009 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 10 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION CHARTER 

 

 
 
 

10 

 
 

___________________________________ 
Joyce C. McWilliams WalkerDora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: RESOLUTION 2023-009 

SUBJECT: WILLOW RUN MUNICIAPL SERVICE DISTRICT CHANGE – 
TERM LIMITS 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

DATE SUBMITTED: FEBRUARY 9, 2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Willow Run Municipal Service District charter currently reflects term limits.  At the January 2023 Council retreat, 
Council requested the charter be updated to reflect no term limits.  

Per the Willow Run Municipal Service District’s charter, a public hearing must be held for any proposed changes.  
Resolution 2023-009 schedules the required public hearing for March 9, 2023 at 7 PM.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff recommends Resolution 2023-009 be approved by Council. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Resolution 2023-009

Attachment #18



 
RESOLUTION 2023-009 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING RELATED TO AMENDING 
THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

 

 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council established the Willow Run Municipal Service District per North Carolina 
General Statute 160A-536(a)(5) in June 2002; and, 
 
WHEREAS, changes to the Municipal Service District ordinance require a public hearing; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council would like to eliminate term limits.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL sets a public hearing to be 
conducted Thursday, March 9, 2023 at 7 PM at the Lewisville Town Hall Council Chambers to receive 
comments concerning the amendment to the Willow Run Municipal Service District ordinance and its 
administration under Chapter 39 of the Lewisville Town Code.  
 
Adopted and effective this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 
             

______________________________ 
ATTEST:        Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: FACILITY FEE EXEMPTION REQUEST 

SUBJECT: WINSTON-SALEM/FORSYTH COUNTY SCHOOLS 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

DATE SUBMITTED: FEBRUARY 9, 2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Schools (WSFCS) has requested consideration of an in-kind facility use 
exemption at the Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC).  WSFCS has scheduled a 2-day, multi-room 
training event.  Currently, WSFCS is on the Town’s facility use exemption list which would provide them with 
reduced user fees for MAWCC.  However, WSFCS is requesting these fees be waived for this event. 

The training event will be April 19-20, 2023, 8 AM-4 PM (plus setup and breakdown) and would utilize multiple 
rooms at MAWCC.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

If desired by Council, a one-time, in-kind fee exemption is recommended.  This would mean that Winston-
Salem/Forsyth County Schools would not pay any fees for their April 19-20, 2023 training event.   

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fees will be charged to WSFCS. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Resolution 2023-010

Attachment #19



 
RESOLUTION 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

FACILITY FEE EXEMPTION FOR WINSTON-SALEM/FORSYTH COUNTY SCHOOLS 
 

 

 
WHEREAS, a Facility Use Exemption Policy for parks and recreation facilities is outlined in Town Code 
Chapter 16-14; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Schools is listed as an exempt facility user under section 16-
14(J); and, 
 
WHEREAS, Town Code Chapter 16-18(E) outlines user fees for exempted users at the Mary Alice Warren 
Community Center; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Schools is requesting an in-kind fee exemption for a two-day, 
multi-room training exercise on April 19 and 20, 2023 at the Mary Alice Warren Community Center.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves a one-time, in-kind 
fee exemption for the Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Schools to utilize the Mary Alice Warren 
Community Center for training on April 19 and 20, 2023.  
 
Adopted and effective this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 
             

______________________________ 
ATTEST:        Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: FACILITY FEE EXEMPTION REQUEST 

SUBJECT: WEST FORSYTH CHRISTIAN PRESCHOOL 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

DATE SUBMITTED: FEBRUARY 9, 2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

West Forsyth Christian Preschool has submitted an application and documentation requesting consideration for 
facility use fee exemption of Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC).  The preschool has scheduled a silent 
auction/gallery hop at MAWCC on April 21, 2023.  The purpose of the event is to raise funds for preschool and 
playground improvements.  

Multi-rooms at MAWCC have been reserved for the event. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

If desired by Council, a one-time facility use fee exemption is recommended.  This would allow West Forsyth 
Christian Preschool to utilize the Mary Alice Warren Community Center on April 21, 2023 per the user fee guidelines 
in Town Code Chapter 16-18(E) and the Town’s current fee schedule.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reduced fees per Town Code Chapter 16-18(E). 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Resolution 2023-011
2) West Forsyth Christian Preschool facility use exemption request application

Attachment #20



 
RESOLUTION 2023-011 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

FACILITY FEE EXEMPTION FOR WEST FORSYTH CHRISTIAN PRESCHOOL 
 

 

 
WHEREAS, a Facility Use Exemption Policy for parks and recreation facilities is outlined in Town Code 
Chapter 16-14; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Town Code Chapter 16-18(E) outlines user fees for exempted users at the Mary Alice Warren 
Community Center; and, 
 
WHEREAS, West Forsyth Christian Preschool holds an annual Silent Auction/Gallery Hop to raise funds to 
improve their preschool and playground; and,  
 
WHEREAS, West Forsyth Christian Preschool has reserved multiple rooms at the Mary Alice Warren 
Community Center for their annual Silent Auction/Gallery Hop on April 21, 2023; and,  
 
WHEREAS, West Forsyth Christian Preschool is requesting a one-time facility user fee exemption at Mary 
Alice Warren Community Center per Chapter 16-18(E) for a Silent Auction/Gallery Hop on April 21, 2023.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves a one-time facility 
user fee exemption per Town Code Chapter 16-18(E) for West Forsyth Christian Preschool to utilize the 
Mary Alice Warren Community Center on April 21, 2023.  
 
Adopted and effective this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 
             

______________________________ 
ATTEST:        Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: FACILITY FEE EXEMPTION REQUEST 

SUBJECT: INDO US CULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

DATE SUBMITTED: FEBRUARY 9, 2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Indo US Cultural Association has submitted an application and documentation requesting consideration for 
facility use fee exemption of Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC).  The association has scheduled a 
kick-off event at MAWCC on February 25, 2023.   

Multiple rooms at MAWCC have been reserved for the event. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

If desired by Council, a one-time facility use fee exemption is recommended.  This would allow the Indo US Cultural 
Association to utilize the Mary Alice Warren Community Center on February 25, 2023 per the user fee guidelines in 
Town Code Chapter 16-18(E) and the Town’s current fee schedule.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reduced fees per Town Code Chapter 16-18(E). 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Resolution 2023-012
2) Indo US Cultural Association facility use exemption request application

Attachment #21



RESOLUTION 2023-012 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
FACILITY FEE EXEMPTION FOR INDO US CULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

WHEREAS, a Facility Use Exemption Policy for parks and recreation facilities is outlined in Town Code 
Chapter 16-14; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Code Chapter 16-18(E) outlines user fees for exempted users at the Mary Alice Warren 
Community Center; and, 

WHEREAS, the Indo US Cultural Association has reserved multiple rooms at the Mary Alice Warren 
Community Center for an event on February 25, 2023.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves a one-time facility 
user fee exemption per Town Code Chapter 16-18(E) for the Indo US Cultural Association to utilize the 
Mary Alice Warren Community Center on February 25, 2023.  

Adopted and effective this the 9th day of February 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 


	02-09-2023 agenda
	01 -Res -2023-06 - Dec 31, 2022 month end financials
	02 - 12-29-2022 Called Meeting Minutes (attorney-client - closed session)
	03 - 01-05-2023 TC Briefing Minutes
	04 - 01-12-2023 TC Meeting Minutes
	05 - 2023 Budget Calendar - Proposed Revisions - Feb 2023
	06 - IOOTRLIAGPTL - Lasley
	Lasley certificate
	01 - IOOTRLIAGPTL - Lasley

	07 - Appt - Ritter - LBC
	10 - Appt - 2023-001 - LBC - Ritter
	Ritter - LBC app

	08 - Appt - O'Connor - PSaC
	11 - Appt - 2023-002 - PSAC - OConnor
	O'Connor - PSAC app

	09 - L-103 staff info
	Staff Report L-103
	Great Wagon Road Townhomes Initial Architecture_Revision 310032022
	LEWISVILLE TOWNHOMES
	LEWISVILLE TOWNHOMES
	LEWISVILLE TOWNHOMES
	LEWISVILLE TOWNHOMES

	L-103 Zoning Map

	10 - 2023-005 Ord - L-103 - rezoning request - future Great Wagon Rd extension
	11 - L-105 Staff Info
	14 - L-105 staff info
	Staff Report L-105
	Site Plan
	L-105 Zoning Map

	Community Meeting Report

	12 - 2023-006 Ord - L-105 - rezoning request - 1138 Lewisville-Clemmons Rd
	13 - 2023-007 - Ord - Budget Amend - Community Policing
	Staff Report-Budget Amendment-Community Policing
	2023-007 - Ord - Budget Amend - Community Policing

	14 - 2023-008 - Ord - Budget Amend - ROW Maint
	Staff Report-Budget Amendment-ROW Maintenance Powell Bill
	16 - 2023-008 - Ord - Budget Amend - ROW Maint

	15 - 2023-007 - Res - Tullyries Lane asphalt patch
	Staff Report-Russell Construction-Contract-Tullyries Lane
	17 - 2023-007 - Res - Tullyries Lane asphalt patch
	Russell Construction-Tullyries Lane Contract

	16 -  2023-008 - Res - Sidewalk & Drainage repairs
	Staff Report-Russell Construction-Contract-Sidewalk Repairs
	18  2023-008 - Res - Sidewalk & Drainage repairs
	Russell Constructon-Sidewalk Repairs Contract

	17 - 2023-009 - Ord - amending Planning Board ZBOA charter
	Planning & ZBOA charter change- staff form
	19 - 2023-009 - Ord - amending Planning Board ZBOA charter

	18 - 2023-009 - Res - Set Willow Run MSD Public Hearing
	MSD charter change- staff form
	18 - 2023-009 - Res - Set Willow Run MSD Public Hearing

	19 - Res - 2023-010 WSFCS exemption request
	WSFCS In-kind request - staff form
	2023-010 - Res - WSFC - Full Event Exemption

	20 - Res - 2023-011 - West Forsyth Preschool exmeption request
	WF Preschool Facility use exempt request - staff form
	2023-011 - Res - West Forsyth Christian Preschool - One-time reduced user exemption

	21 - 2023-012 - Res - Indo exemption request
	Indo facility use exempt request - staff form
	2023-012 - Res - Indo US Cultural Assoc - One-time reduced user exemption




